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          1  HEALTH AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good afternoon.

          3  I'm Council Member Bill Perkins, Chairman of the

          4  Governmental Operations Committee, co-chairing this

          5  hearing with Council Member Christine Quinn, the

          6  Chairperson of our Health Committee, and we're here

          7  today to focus on a problem that has gotten

          8  widespread public attention, and we want to begin to

          9  get a handle on this problem once again, and we want

         10  to welcome everyone for being here.

         11                 Clearly, in many people's eyes we

         12  have a rodent epidemic, one that represents spending

         13  that has increased over 64 percent over the past

         14  four years, yet complaints have gone up 29 percent

         15  over the last year.

         16                 Clearly we need to look at this

         17  problem in ways that perhaps we have not looked at

         18  it in the past, and one of the approaches that we

         19  want to take is an approach that entails a

         20  consistent centralized and a comprehensive approach.

         21  We need a response mechanism that does not avoid the

         22  public outcry about this problem that is not subject

         23  to the whims and political agendas of incumbents,

         24  but one that is again consistent, comprehensive and

         25  one that is accountable to the concerns that the
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          2  public had, and in this regard we are interested in

          3  creating a pest control board that will provide us

          4  with some consistency that is a uniform analysis,

          5  and standards clearly define responsibilities and

          6  goals that go beyond just one administration. We

          7  want a centralized approach, one place to turn to

          8  large complaints that fosters interagency

          9  cooperation that can gauge the root cause of our

         10  problems and initiate a response accordingly. We

         11  want a comprehensive approach, a top-down approach

         12  with input from all major agency heads, rather than

         13  a scattered isolated piecemeal approach that we have

         14  had over too many years.

         15                 And, clearly, we want an approach

         16  that is depoliticized, and therefore not run by any

         17  one office or branch of government, a response

         18  mechanism not tailored to the media or political

         19  events.  As we have seen in the past, when the

         20  rodent epidemic was brought into high profile by the

         21  media, government responded; when the media went

         22  away, the response went away, yet the rats continued

         23  to proliferate and infest our community.

         24                 And, obviously, we want one that has

         25  some level of accountability, one board that will be
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          2  able to scrutinize and assess the impact of our

          3  strategies, and if it's unsuccessful, can reassess

          4  and restrategize.

          5                 We want to really establish as our

          6  public policy zero tolerance, as we do with respect

          7  to crime. We must do the same thing with respect to

          8  rats and rodent infestation.

          9                 We obviously may not be able to

         10  totally eradicate this problem, but we must

         11  establish as our goal zero tolerance and to minimize

         12  the most acceptable and tolerable level possible.

         13                 We have to reprioritize this rodent

         14  epidemic. At this point I would like to acknowledge

         15  some of the members of my Committee. On my left,

         16  Council Member Michael Nelson, Council Member

         17  Kendall Stewart from the Health Committee. Dr.

         18  Kendall Stewart from the Health Committee. Council

         19  Member Al Vann, and Councilwoman Helen Sears, and

         20  now both are from the Health Committee and now I

         21  will turn it over to the Chair of the Health

         22  Committee, Christine Quinn.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. We like

         24  to think of Council Member/Chairperson Perkins as

         25  our own little rat czar here in the City Council,
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          2  though I am disappointed that he doesn't have his

          3  typical rat accessory, which is a little rat pin on

          4  his lapel that he has at most rat-related functions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Today, as we said,

          7  we're having a joint hearing of the Health Committee

          8  and the Government Operations Committee. The reason

          9  this is a joint hearing among others is because the

         10  very important piece of legislation that Council

         11  Member Perkins referenced, Intro. 534 which seeks to

         12  create a standing pest control board, has been

         13  referred to both committees jointly. I think it's

         14  important to note that that's because the point of

         15  this Board, among other things, is to increase

         16  coordination between City agencies. There are many

         17  City agencies that deal with rat issues, deal with

         18  pest control, this Board, among other things, would

         19  make sure that those agencies are working in the

         20  most coordinated way possible, and really maximizing

         21  their communication and maximizing their collective

         22  efforts. I think it's important to have an entity

         23  that formalizes that type of communication. There

         24  may have been entities or efforts like this in the

         25  past that as Council Member Perkins said, this is
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          2  such a serious problem, we can't leave it up to the

          3  goodwill of a Mayor to decide to create this. We

          4  need to make sure it's permanently legislated as a

          5  requirement of pest control board, which would

          6  include agencies and other members, experts in this

          7  field as well, who could bring more suggestions and

          8  resources to the City.

          9                 Today we are going to, in addition to

         10  hearing this bill, hearing, having our second

         11  hearing on Intro 90-A, and also hearing Reso 1024,

         12  which is really a look at the Bushwick Rat Abatement

         13  Program, is that model working well, is it something

         14  we should be expanding beyond the expansion the City

         15  is already talking about.

         16                 But perhaps most importantly we're

         17  going to be looking at the state of rat infestation

         18  in the City of New York.

         19                 As my colleague said, the most recent

         20  Mayor's Management report documented a 29 percent

         21  increase in rat complaints. That's pre-3-1-1. That's

         22  before there was one number for people to call. That

         23  in and of itself is very important, a 29 percent

         24  increase is a staggering number, something that I

         25  think to call it a crisis really isn't an
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          2  overstatement at all.

          3                 When you look at the two charts that

          4  our staff has prepared to our right, it shows the

          5  numbers of these complaints, but it also shows

          6  something very important in the second chart, that

          7  the funding for rodent control budget in the City of

          8  New York has gone down significantly since Fiscal

          9  Year '00, leveled out over the past two years, but

         10  as this decrease in the City's funding of rodent

         11  control has occurred, the complaints have continued

         12  to go up.

         13                 I think that chart sends a very clear

         14  picture that we need to figure out a way to bring

         15  not only more coordination, but more resources to

         16  fight this real epidemic of rats and rodents in so

         17  many of the City's neighborhoods.

         18                 We're also going to look at today how

         19  has the City used the money that was restored to the

         20  budget by the City Council and the Mayor and the

         21  last year's budget negotiations.

         22                 We have gotten reports from some of

         23  the City's municipal labor unions that in fact the

         24  way the Council thought the money was going to be

         25  used, that the employees we thought who might be
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          2  hired back, were in fact not hired back and that the

          3  money is being used in a different way.

          4                 We're also going to seek to find out

          5  why we've received information from the Office of

          6  Management and Budget that in Fiscal Years '01, '02

          7  and '03, the City spent less money on rodent control

          8  than they were budgeted for. We've been told by the

          9  Office of Management and Budget that in FY '01, the

         10  City was budgeted 11.4 million, they spent $11

         11  million. In '02, 11.3, spent 10.5. In '03, budgeted

         12  for 10, spent 9.6. You know, those are amounts of 4,

         13  500,000 less spent every year. Obviously the

         14  majority of the budget has been spent, but every

         15  penny that's been allocated, which clearly isn't

         16  enough, needs to be spent. Why, according to the

         17  Office of Management and Budget's numbers, are some

         18  of those monies being held back by the City agencies

         19  and not getting out into our neighborhoods?

         20                 We hope that this hearing moves us

         21  closer to a more coordinated and better funded plan,

         22  gives us answers to those questions, and I hope

         23  really highlights that Intro. 534, which was

         24  authored by my colleague, Council Member Perkins,

         25  will be an excellent additional tool in our efforts
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          2  to control the rat population in our City.

          3                 I want to say we've been joined by

          4  Council Member Phil Reed, a member of the Health

          5  Committee, and the author of Intro. 90-A.

          6                 And Council Member Yvette Clarke, a

          7  member of the Health Committee in Brooklyn has also

          8  joined us. And go right ahead.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Good afternoon,

         10  Chairpersons Quinn and Perkins and members of the

         11  City Council Health and Government Operations

         12  Committee.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry,

         14  Commissioner, could you hold on one second. I

         15  apologize. I apologize to my colleagues, Council

         16  Member Reed, the author of Intro. 90-A should be

         17  allowed, I apologize, to make a statement on the

         18  bill.

         19                 I also just want to say, not only

         20  that, Reso 1024 was offered by Council Member Helen

         21  Foster. Unfortunately, Council Member Foster has had

         22  a death in her family, and had to go to Bermuda for

         23  the funeral for her relatives, so she's not able to

         24  be with us today. She wanted to extend her apologies

         25  for missing today's hearing, but she did ask us to
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          2  go ahead and hear the resolution even in her

          3  absence.

          4                 Thank you. I apologize. Council

          5  Member Reed, if you could give us some opening

          6  remarks on Reso 90-A. This is the second hearing

          7  we're having on that piece of legislation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Madam

          9  Chair, and Council Member Chair, and Council Member

         10  Perkins, the Chair of Government Ops, I serve on

         11  both, so either way we're going to vote on this, and

         12  maybe I get to vote twice.

         13                 I introduced this bill some time ago,

         14  because I think it was made clear to us in a lot of

         15  the summits that we had in the discussion with the

         16  Department of Health that so much of the concern

         17  that we have in the City about rats is related to

         18  trash on the street, and in looking at what

         19  penalties were provided for incorrectly putting out

         20  trash or probably to say it more accurately, the

         21  indiscriminate just dumping of garbage on the street

         22  by many supers and landlords, we're allowing that

         23  situation to be created, was and still is causing us

         24  to have problems.

         25                 Unfortunately, sometimes the only
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          2  time you get somebody's attention is to hit them

          3  over the head with something, and the fines of $25,

          4  $30 didn't seem to get enough attention. So, I would

          5  hope that as we begin this, with the beginning fine

          6  of $300, and if the City of course did not only

          7  enforce that but then fine them and collect, we may

          8  see a response to this.

          9                 I think that the Department of Health

         10  overall has tried to tackle this problem. I'm not

         11  sure that we have been as successful as we wanted to

         12  be. I think trying to examine the funding as relates

         13  to the concern, Chair, makes perfect sense.

         14                 I can't think of any other problem

         15  that I hear more often from people in my district,

         16  even from any perspective, rats terrify people,

         17  they're unhealthy. We need to educate the community,

         18  but we also need to create opportunities for people

         19  to change behavior, and that is certainly by

         20  example. But if you can't get your landlord to fix

         21  the trash and provide these containers, which I

         22  think is part of what you're going to be talking

         23  about in Bushwick, we're really just constantly

         24  redoing a cycle. So, I appreciate the hearing and I

         25  look forward to hearing from the Commissioner, but
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          2  I'm pleased that we're getting this bill done today.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon.

          5  Could you raise your right hand?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, the Gov Ops

          7  swears people in.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

          9  swear or affirm the testimony you're about to give

         10  is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         11  truth?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         14  Could you state your name and your agency.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I'm Dr. Thomas

         16  Frieden, Commissioner of the New York City

         17  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         18                 Good afternoon, and I would like

         19  first off to recognize the leadership of Chairperson

         20  Quinn, as well as the Health Committee, and the

         21  leadership of Chairperson Perkins on the issue of

         22  rodent and rodent control for many years in New York

         23  City.

         24                 I think this has been an excellent

         25  leadership that you have had.
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          2                 I appreciate the opportunity to

          3  testify before the Councilman to address the issue

          4  of rodent control generally, and the two intros that

          5  are before you.

          6                 Because rodents spread disease, cause

          7  economic damage and lower the quality of life, the

          8  City's Health Code prohibits rodent infestation and

          9  conditions conducive to such infestation.

         10                 It authorizes the Department to

         11  compel property owners to eliminate such conditions.

         12  Keeping rodent populations in check is especially

         13  challenging in New York City, the nation's most

         14  densely populated municipality, and let me request

         15  that the full testimony be read in and I will spear

         16  you that and read you an abbreviated version.

         17                 While the Health Department is

         18  responsible for enforcing the Health Code with

         19  respect to rodent control, every agency, every

         20  business, every community and every resident has an

         21  important role to play.

         22                 Our activities include enforcement,

         23  inspections, exterminations, removal of garbage and

         24  debris from properties with unremediated violations.

         25  We also collaborate with other government agencies
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          2  to monitor and   control rodent infestation,

          3  identify high-risk areas, reduce rodent numbers, do

          4  a source reduction stoppage, which means stopping up

          5  the holes to keep rodents out and the judicious

          6  application of rodenticides.

          7                 We now use a geographic approach

          8  whereby clusters of complaints were observations by

          9  our outreach staff, trigger community-wide

         10  assessment and then intervention as necessary.

         11                 Our core pest control activities

         12  include the following: First, inspections. We

         13  inspect property if there are complaints, or

         14  proactively if we identify the area as a problematic

         15  area.

         16                 If the initial inspection detects

         17  violations, the owner is issued a Commissioner's

         18  order requiring prompt remediation. There is a

         19  compliance inspection to follow up and the owner is

         20  issued a notice of violation which is adjudicated in

         21  a civil proceeding if the violation persists.

         22                 In the case of a rodent bite, the

         23  inspection is scheduled within 24 hours and

         24  remediation is immediate.

         25                 Second, we do exterminations, both on
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          2  private property and on public property where there

          3  is an immediate public health threat.

          4                 Private owners are first given the

          5  opportunity to remediate before the Department takes

          6  this important enforcement action and bills the

          7  providers for it.

          8                 Third, clean-ups and stoppage on

          9  private property to eliminate rodent-conducive

         10  conditions are conducted after a failed compliant

         11  inspection and issuance of a notice of violation.

         12  The cost of these activities is billed to the owner

         13  and can be substantial.

         14                 Fourth, outreach and education,

         15  including posters, flyers and brochures, media

         16  campaigns, websites, all of these are important to

         17  rodent control.

         18                 Turning now to some of the key

         19  management indicators, I must first note that FY

         20  '02, during which the 9/11 attack occurred, gives

         21  some misleading comparisons because telephone

         22  services were down for several months, and the

         23  number of complaints received was

         24  uncharacteristically low in '02. So when you look at

         25  trends, you have to look at '02 carefully.
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          2                 In recent years, the program had

          3  substantially increased its productivity. Going back

          4  to 1996, Pest Control received about 20,000

          5  complaints, performed about 24,000 inspections and

          6  about 35,000 exterminations. By 2001, complaints

          7  were relatively stable at 19,000, but we had

          8  increased inspection to 50,000, and extermination is

          9  at 65,000. That's about a doubling of both of those

         10  key activities.

         11                 In FY '03, which is the advent of

         12  3-1-1, we received 21,000 complaints, performed

         13  64,000 inspections, and 75,000 exterminations, while

         14  the number of complaints registered last year was

         15  about the same as in the mid-nineties, were

         16  performing two and a half times more inspections,

         17  and more than twice as many exterminations, as we

         18  conducted in the mid-nineties, so there have been

         19  important productivity improvement in the program.

         20                 There are also other agencies in City

         21  government which have a critical role to play. The

         22  Department of Sanitation continues lot cleaning with

         23  an emphasis on lots in problem areas. They're

         24  working with us in the Law Department on a

         25  complicated issue of getting access warrants in the
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          2  course to permit entry into locked or fenced-in

          3  privately-owed lots.

          4                 Sanitation has also effected a

          5  Citywide crack-down on illegal dumping, and is

          6  replacing wire mesh public litter baskets with

          7  closed baskets as the budget allows in coordinating

          8  with our Department on public education.

          9                 HPD regularly inspects and

         10  exterminates properties under its management. The

         11  Department of Parks and Recreation uses integrated

         12  pest management to prohibit and exclude rodents in

         13  conjunction with pesticide placement, frequent

         14  garbage pick-up in hot spots and replacement of wire

         15  baskets with rodent-resistant closed containers, as

         16  its budget allows.

         17                 NYCHA treats apartments four to five

         18  times annually as necessary and grounds including

         19  basements monthly, it's installing roll-away trash

         20  compactors at housing developments and that's a very

         21  important measure.

         22                 I think one point to make clear is

         23  that the more food there is available, the more

         24  rodents there will be. The less food there is

         25  available, the fewer rodents there will be, and
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          2  extermination alone is never going to get us out of

          3  the rodent situation that we're in.

          4                 Various agencies reflect our

          5  proactive approach to rodent control. In mid-August,

          6  Mayor Bloomberg announced an initiative to increase

          7  the effectiveness of the City's rodent control

          8  efforts. This initiative builds on a three-year

          9  CDC-funded pilot integrated pest management project

         10  and a 48-block portion of Bushwick in Brooklyn,

         11  which has now, had previously had long evidence of

         12  rodent infestation.

         13                 Community organizations and

         14  department staff trained in rodent stoppage and

         15  garbage containerization, in turn trained property

         16  owners and residents in pest control measures.

         17                 All properties have been inspected.

         18  Owners in violation are given the choice of

         19  participating in training and temporarily delaying

         20  follow-up inspections. It's a collaborative work

         21  where we first offer them to participate and then we

         22  go in with enforcement activities as needed.

         23                 Trash containers were distributed and

         24  we used geographic targeting to evaluate the impact

         25  of the interventions. We also are developing a
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          2  hand-held device for inspectors and exterminators,

          3  which should further increase productivity.

          4                 In this pilot program, through the

          5  community's 1,800 properties were inspected,

          6  compliance inspections were done on those that

          7  failed initially, subsequent inspection of all 1,800

          8  properties was performed to gauge the impact of our

          9  interventions.

         10                 It's a comprehensive effort to

         11  encourage sealing out of potential places where

         12  rodents can come in, including training, education

         13  and the materials.

         14                 We've also performed clean-up and

         15  exterminations as necessary, and in this year we're

         16  focusing on indoor health code violations in

         17  conjunction with other department programs.

         18                 The Bushwick project is showing

         19  encouraging signs. Preliminary results for the first

         20  year indicate a marked increase in the proportion of

         21  properties that pass inspection. From a 34 percent

         22  passing rate in 2001 to a 62 percent passing rate in

         23  mid-2003, it's far from perfect but it's a dramatic

         24  improvement.

         25                 Mayor Bloomberg announced in August
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          2  an initiative that includes substantial expansion of

          3  the pilot in Brooklyn and implementation of a

          4  similar program in two other areas of the City, the

          5  South Bronx and Eastern Central Harlem.

          6                 I have to emphasize in the strongest

          7  possible terms that we took great care in selecting

          8  these three areas. We understand that throughout New

          9  York City there are serious problems with rodent

         10  infestation. But based on the best objective

         11  evidence that we could assembly, including the

         12  housing vacancy survey done by HPD, rodent

         13  violations, HPD's information on violations of their

         14  code, and all other available data, these are the

         15  three places that are the worst. So we focused on

         16  where we could objectively say it's most needed.

         17  That's not to say that we're not doing things in

         18  other parts of the City, that's not to say that we

         19  wouldn't love to expand the resources allowing to

         20  other parts of the City, but we're starting where

         21  it's worst, not only because that's where it's most

         22  needed, but also because by addressing the problem

         23  where there is most rodent breeding, you reduce

         24  rodents not only for those communities but for the

         25  surrounding communities as well.
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          2                 In addition to the initiative, the

          3  Mayor established a multi-agency rodent control task

          4  force headed by the Mayor's Office of Operation

          5  under Susan Kupferman, the Director of that office,

          6  to support the expansion and ensure coordinated

          7  control strategies among 19 City agencies.

          8                 The Health Department plays a lead

          9  role with participation from the Offices of

         10  Emergency Management, the Office of Management and

         11  Budget, Sanitation, HPD, Parks and Recreation,

         12  Education, Environmental Protection, Police, Fire,

         13  Homeless Services, DCAS, DDC, Buildings and Law

         14  Department, NYCHA, MTA, HHC, Administration for

         15  Children's Services, MOC and Community Assistance

         16  Unit. It really is a comprehensive approach.

         17                 The Task Force's first report to the

         18  Mayor summarizes the initiative, outlines its early

         19  progress and documents the next steps to be

         20  undertaken to realize program goals.

         21                 The key things done in the first two

         22  months are these: First, a detailed inventory and

         23  assessment of more than 2,900 publicly-owned

         24  properties, operated or owned by 26 different

         25  government agencies in the three target areas. This
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          2  is a critical first step to correct the rodent

          3  problems.

          4                 Second, forming and enacting

          5  remediation plans with time lines for every one of

          6  the properties with rodent problems in targeted

          7  zones. The task force will track the implementation

          8  of these plans.

          9                 Third, implementation or beginning of

         10  a comprehensive community outreach component

         11  beginning with briefing of some City Council members

         12  in initiative jurisdictions, and encompassing a

         13  public/private partnership development and pro bono

         14  assistance.

         15                 Finally, I will comment on the two

         16  bills on the Committees' agenda today, Intros 90-A

         17  and 534.

         18                 Intro. 90-A would set minimum fines

         19  for rodent-related violations. The first fine 300,

         20  subsequently within a two-year period doubling of

         21  the previous violation up to the Health Code maximum

         22  of 2,000. We support this Council's proposal and

         23  appreciate the opportunity afforded by the Council

         24  to address some technical issues that arose in the

         25  original bill.
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          2                 We believe that evidence clearly

          3  shows that increased fine minimums, combined with

          4  other actions improves compliance among property

          5  owners.

          6                 Intro. 534 would create a pest

          7  control board, comprising seven members, including

          8  the Health Commissioner and the Sanitation

          9  Commissioner, with others appointed by the Mayor and

         10  the Council Speaker. We respectfully but strongly

         11  oppose this legislation. It appears to create a new

         12  body or agency authorized to employ staff, implement

         13  systems and make policies, including promulgation of

         14  regulations that are currently under the purview of

         15  the Board of Health and implemented by the

         16  Department of Health.

         17                 This new unit or agency would not

         18  only be costly and duplicative, but could also

         19  conflict or possibly contradict some of the pest

         20  control actions of other agencies.

         21                 If the purpose is to coordinate

         22  activities of all City agencies, this would be much

         23  better accomplished through the Interagency Task

         24  Force that is now supporting and implementing the

         25  Mayor's Rodent Control Initiative, and which I
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          2  discussed earlier in which we will be happy to have

          3  Council representation at.

          4                 In these difficult fiscal times, all

          5  of the City's programs are working hard to improve

          6  efficiency and meet increasing needs with leveled or

          7  less resources. Pest control is no exception. We

          8  must use our resources to improve services in our

          9  community, rather than add another layer of

         10  bureaucracy. We urge you not to enact the bill, but

         11  welcome working with you to continue to identify

         12  better ways to control the rodent population in New

         13  York City.

         14                 We will continue to do all we can to

         15  maximize available resources, to work

         16  collaboratively inside and outside of government, to

         17  improve rodent control and to create policies and

         18  initiatives that will reduce the number of rodents

         19  in our City.

         20                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         21  address this issue and for your continued interest

         22  and support in a critically important issue of

         23  rodent control.

         24                 I'll be happy to answer your

         25  questions. I should say that sitting with me is Mr.

                                                            28

          1  HEALTH AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  James Gibson, who is the Assistant Commissioner, and

          3  Director, of our Veterinarian Pest Control Program.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          5  much, Commissioner, for your testimony and for your

          6  efforts with regard to this matter.

          7                 I want to go straight to your

          8  comments with regard to 534, but before I do that I

          9  want to acknowledge Council Member Comrie, and I

         10  think Council Member Vallone has arrived, since you

         11  began your testimony.

         12                 The concern that we have that

         13  inspires us to 534 is the sort of whimsical stop and

         14  go history with regard to the so-called task force.

         15  This is the third resurrection implementation of a

         16  so-called task force that I can recall, the first

         17  two being under the Giuliani Administration, now

         18  this one under the Bloomberg Administration.

         19                 The first time that it came out in

         20  terms of the Giuliani Administration was again

         21  during a moment of great publicity, and then it went

         22  dormant until it was once again pointed out that we

         23  have a rodent epidemic dramatically represented by

         24  rats running in the sun in the Baruch Houses on the

         25  Lower East Side, and also by virtue of groups like
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          2  Make the Road by Walking and other groups

          3  demonstrating at the steps of City Hall and at the

          4  Department of Health. At that time Mayor Giuliani

          5  resurrected the Task Force and placed it under the

          6  Office of Emergency Management, and apparently began

          7  I think with Mr. Gibson to look at this problem, and

          8  now it's being moved from the Office of Emergency

          9  Management and put under the Mayor's Office, and,

         10  again, its activities seem to be resurrected as a

         11  result of the latest series of press activity and

         12  complaints, and so what we seem to be missing is a

         13  sort of consistent comprehensive approach to

         14  addressing this very, very fundamental problem. You

         15  know, we have, in this hearing more interest today

         16  than we had on the question of nonpartisan

         17  elections. We have more media, we have more folks

         18  from the Administration, we have more folks from the

         19  community, and so clearly this is a municipal

         20  concern of significant importance, yet we don't seem

         21  to have come to grips with it in terms of a

         22  consistent comprehensive cost effective way, and we

         23  think that 534 begins to look at it from that

         24  perspective.

         25                 Can you respond?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I would first

          3  emphasize that neither our current focus on this

          4  issue, nor our approach are driven by publicity,

          5  that we also, as Council Member Reed said earlier,

          6  every time we go out into communities we hear this

          7  as a major concern, we hear it loud and clear, we

          8  want to do more.

          9                 The current task force out of the

         10  Mayor's Office of Operations represents a commitment

         11  to make rodent control an ongoing and integral part

         12  of agency operations in a way it hasn't been before,

         13  and in a way that wouldn't be effectively dealt with

         14  by having it as part of an emergency or episodic

         15  response. And, so, it is exactly the need to have an

         16  ongoing consistent Citywide approach, which has led

         17  to the creation of this task force under the Mayor's

         18  Office of Operations that we can really get into the

         19  day-to-day operations of each agency and making sure

         20  that none of the agencies are doing things that are

         21  unnecessarily increasing the risk of rodent

         22  infestation and that all of them are doing as much

         23  as they can within current resources to reduce that

         24  infestation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me
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          2  acknowledge the fact that all the agencies

          3  representing the task force are here today and want

          4  to thank them for their presence.

          5                 Today it's in the Mayor's office,

          6  last week it was in OEM under the Giuliani

          7  Administration, actually the Health Department, I

          8  guess is supposed to by charter be the lead agency,

          9  yet it's been centralized in different places under

         10  different Mayors at different points in time, so the

         11  public has no sort of reliable, consistent

         12  understanding about how this task force functions,

         13  and how this City prioritizes and institutionalizes

         14  its responsibility to fight the rodent infestation

         15  that they are suffering from on a constant basis. We

         16  don't see a constant focus, we don't see a constant

         17  place. Right now 3-1-1 seems to be the number to

         18  call. It seems to be getting more calls from any

         19  other, by comparison to any other complaints, it

         20  would seem that the folks should know, the community

         21  should know that there's one place, not part of a

         22  more comprehensive 3-1-1 number but rather its own

         23  special number for this particular type of problem,

         24  since it has been so consistent and instead of --

         25  and unfortunately seems in some respects in some
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          2  communities to be growing.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: First off,

          4  today we're making available to you and to others

          5  who are interested the 60-day report that Mayor

          6  Bloomberg asked of the Rodent Control Task Force.

          7  This is a report of its activities in the first 60

          8  days and key next steps moving forward. We welcome

          9  suggestions for what more needs to be done, what

         10  more can be done, what more should be done, where.

         11                 3-1-1 is critically important for

         12  people to call, it's very easy for people to call

         13  that. That doesn't mean there isn't a focus attempt.

         14  People can submit rodent complaints either through

         15  3-1-1, or through the website. We want it to be easy

         16  for people to complain. We don't necessarily see an

         17  increase in complaints as signs of a failure. One of

         18  the challenges with rodent control is getting key

         19  outcome measures that we can track. It's not easy.

         20                 But we do encourage people to

         21  complain so that we can track where the problems

         22  are, intervene, force building owners or others to

         23  comply with the code and take enforcement actions

         24  when necessary.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I know my
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          2  colleagues have other concerns, and I would like to

          3  come back to this, but I think it's the

          4  acknowledgment on your part that this is the 60-day

          5  report, suggests what happened before the 60 days in

          6  terms of the task force, what was it doing to

          7  account for -- where was it? Was it OEM at that

          8  time? Where was it before this 60 days? It's a

          9  moving target so-to-speak.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No, it's not a

         11  moving target, it moved once.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: It moved once.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It moved once,

         14  60 days before this report, from OEM to the Mayor's

         15  Office of Operations.

         16                 This report reflects the first 60

         17  days of activity of this task force, which is for

         18  the indefinite future going to be the home of

         19  coordination of rodent control activities with the

         20  Health Department, as you correctly stated, as the

         21  lead agency.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The indefinite

         23  future of this Administration? Or the indefinite

         24  future of our City?

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Well, certainly
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          2  the next six years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. Well,

          4  that's heartening. Though, of course, we hope that

          5  unfortunately the problem will be with us more than

          6  the next six years, and when the next Mayor, if that

          7  should happen sooner, comes in on board, we would

          8  want something in place that is permanent and

          9  centralized and consistent with what it is that

         10  we're all trying to accomplish.

         11                 The concern that we have is that it

         12  just keeps moving and, for instance, there has never

         13  been a public announcement as to the move, was

         14  there?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, actually.

         16  There was an announcement as to the creation of the

         17  task force.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: No, no, no. I'm

         19  talking about moving from OEM to the Mayor's Office.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes. There was

         21  an announcement that the task force had been

         22  created, that it would now be under the Mayor's

         23  Office of Operations. But with OEM as a very

         24  important partner and part of that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And what is
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          2  OEM's part in that regard?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: OEM assists

          4  with response, with coordination, and if there has

          5  to be, for example, a multi-agency approach to a

          6  specific area, then OEM would help to coordinate

          7  that on-the-ground response.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I,

         11  again, want to thank, with all the other agencies

         12  who are here, Sanitation, NYCHA, HPD, Office of

         13  Emergency Management, and just remind my colleagues

         14  that they have questions also for those agencies, we

         15  can call the representatives of those agencies up to

         16  the witness table, if there are specific questions

         17  beyond DOHMH that need to be answered.

         18                 In just skimming quickly the task

         19  force report to the Mayor, on page three there are a

         20  number of ideas, and point two, that certainly seem

         21  like good ideas, except the question I have when I

         22  look at all of those bullet points is, you know, the

         23  increased frequencies, NYCHA replacing door sweeps

         24  and missing garbage cans lids, replacing mesh litter

         25  baskets with metal cans, et cetera, et cetera, where
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          2  is the funding coming from from all of those

          3  initiatives? Because they all are certainly great

          4  ideas, probably many of them were included in

          5  Council Member Perkins' rat report a couple of years

          6  ago, but how is this going to happen? Where is the

          7  money coming from to pay for these things, and is

          8  that new money, or is it money being redirected from

          9  something else in those agencies, or in your agency?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There is no new

         11  money for this, other than the $2 million announced

         12  by the Mayor some time back.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That was federal

         14  money, the $2 million?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No, that was

         16  City money, that was the restoration.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         18                 I'm sorry, the $2 million was --

         19  because I just don't understand the numbers, was not

         20  $2 million in addition to what was there last year,

         21  it was the Mayor saying he was not going to cut the

         22  $2 million he proposed to cut.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: That's correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So it wasn't new

         25  money.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just keeping

          4  things as they are. Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Many of the

          6  actions can be taken by working smarter, by using

          7  existing maintenance staff, by having best practices

          8  in different areas.

          9                 The truth is there is more that we

         10  would like to do. If there were more resources, we

         11  would like to have more rodent-resistant containers,

         12  but they cost money.

         13                 Obviously Sanitation does as many

         14  pick-ups as resources allow, the same is true for

         15  Parks and Recreation. So the initiatives being

         16  undertaken are management initiatives, by which I

         17  mean improving the management of current activities,

         18  identifying best practices, and focusing, also

         19  particularly focusing in the communities which have

         20  the worst rodent problems affecting those as well as

         21  the surrounding areas.

         22                 There is, however, a small amount of

         23  new money for receptacles, about $300,000 one time

         24  to purchase additional receptacles in these areas,

         25  rodent-resistant. We've been able to use receptacles
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          2  which have covers and so can't easily be entered by

          3  rodents, they also are wheelable, so they're easy to

          4  bring in and out. They don't stay. They're locked so

          5  they don't disappear, and they're rodent resistant,

          6  so the rodents can't actually bite through them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The 300, that's

          8  City money?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. So, that

         11  explains what's going to -- how the missing garbage

         12  lids and the mesh litter baskets to metal cans at

         13  NYCHA is going to happen, but it doesn't seem like

         14  replacing door sweeps can happen just by working

         15  smarter, and I'm not sure how we're going to

         16  increase the frequency of exterminations at HPD if

         17  there aren't more exterminators. I mean, how exactly

         18  are these things going to be accomplished without

         19  additional resources?

         20                 And I just want to say on the last

         21  ones, at sites identified with rodent problems, the

         22  Department of Education plans to implement

         23  procedures to avoid leaving refuse on sidewalks

         24  overnight, make necessary repairs to refuse storage

         25  containers, and increase the frequency of
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          2  extermination. I recently met with a couple of

          3  principals in my district, perhaps this is how it's

          4  going to happen, but they've all requested that I

          5  put in for capital money for garbage receptacles for

          6  them. So, I don't know if that was the Department of

          7  Ed's plan, was to get the principals to get the

          8  Council members to get money in the budget, if it is

          9  I think it might not, it's an interesting plan. So,

         10  how are these other things going to happen that I

         11  think clearly are related to having some extra

         12  money, or extra people?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There really

         14  are many things that can be done with existing

         15  resources, and the challenge for every agency in the

         16  City is to do more with less. This is a fiscal

         17  reality that we are within. If we had more money, we

         18  would do more things, but even with existing

         19  resources, it's possible by better managing, better

         20  tracking, focusing on the areas that most need help,

         21  using best practices, sharing experiences across

         22  agencies, to work more effectively.

         23                 I would comment, though, I also

         24  thought that perhaps garbage receptacles would be

         25  capitalizable. They're not, and so it has to come
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          2  out of the expense budget. But trash compactors, for

          3  example, of the kind that NYCHA is doing, is a

          4  potential capital item, and those make a big

          5  difference because they reduce the amount of

          6  potential food for rodents available.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm skeptical that

          8  these things -- I'm not skeptical that you and the

          9  other agencies would like these things to happen,

         10  but I am skeptical that they will happen without

         11  some type of additional resources. I think the fact

         12  that the principal in this school in my district

         13  came to me to ask for help really speaks to the fact

         14  that real extra resources are critical to making

         15  these things happen, and I think as you read down

         16  the list, it's hard to imagine that just working

         17  smarter could make all of these things happen.

         18                 On money for a second. This is what

         19  we're talking about. Could you respond to the

         20  information that the Office of Management and Budget

         21  provided us that shows, you know, $400,000 less

         22  being spent than was budgeted for in Fiscal Year '01

         23  and in Fiscal Year '02, 11.3 being budget, but 10.5

         24  being spent, so a difference of $800,000, and

         25  $400,000 difference in '03.
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          2                 Now, those, I just wanted to say, are

          3  different, those budgeted numbers are different than

          4  the numbers that appear on DOH information, which

          5  are slightly higher numbers, which may reflect

          6  administrative numbers and the difference between

          7  your numbers at OMB, so let's just go with the OMB

          8  one.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right. And just

         10  to clarify, the higher numbers also include the

         11  administrative tribunal.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's what we

         13  thought, okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: You have to

         15  include all the hearing officers and the other

         16  enforcement activities. So these are actually on the

         17  ground pest control activities.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So our assumption

         19  was that like the difference between the 11.4 in '01

         20  and the 14.6 is the tribunal cost?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Tribunal and

         22  other administrative costs.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. Okay, we're

         24  on the same page with that.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, there are
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          2  underspending. The underspending is in the range of

          3  five percent. Is what you've seen, that is primarily

          4  related to vacancies, and difficulty in filling

          5  vacancies in the past.

          6                 The program for '04 has had to reduce

          7  vacancies, we'll see what the underspending is, but

          8  in our agency with the budget of $1.4 billion last

          9  year we had very, very little underspending in the

         10  agency as a whole. And, so, there is inevitably

         11  going to be some underspending, but it's small and

         12  we definitely try to keep it as small as possible.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You know, I

         14  appreciate that it might be smaller than the context

         15  of the whole budget, but within the context of the

         16  rodent control situation, it seems noteworthy to me.

         17  Complaints have gone up 29 percent, and there's not

         18  every penny is being spent, that to me, particularly

         19  if I'm a constituent who is facing increasing rats

         20  in my neighborhood is just unacceptable. I mean,

         21  that's four or five-hundred thousand dollars, which

         22  may not be a lot in the context of the whole

         23  agency's budget, but I think is a lot in the context

         24  of somebody who has rats in their home or in their

         25  child's school.
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          2                 So what steps are being taken to make

          3  sure that all of the dollars are getting out the

          4  door?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I agree with

          6  you, Council Member. I think that even though it's

          7  only four percent of the budget, we would like to

          8  spend 100 percent of the budget, and make sure that

          9  we do that in a way that is going to maximally

         10  reduce rodent infestation.

         11                 One of the things that we're doing is

         12  focusing more on exterminators and sanitarians,

         13  those people that can actually do the inspections,

         14  issue violations and do the exterminations, and to

         15  get those hired as rapidly as possible.

         16                 We do face the challenges of working

         17  with civil service list, working with other things

         18  that may delay bringing staff on board, but we're

         19  doing that as well as we can. I'm hopeful that this

         20  year we'll have significantly less proportion of

         21  underspending.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, I have some

         23  more questions on this, and also the questions on

         24  the switch to exterminators, but let me go to some

         25  of my colleagues and then come back to those.
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          2                 Council Member Sears.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair.

          5                 As it relates to the Bushwick

          6  Project, I have two questions. Can you tell us what

          7  we've done on a daily basis, added, contributed to

          8  the success of that project? Because the things that

          9  are stated as things that are done in the interim

         10  period, but there also has to be an effort on a

         11  daily basis.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: On an ongoing

         13  basis there are inspections. There is education,

         14  there is training of landlords and building owners.

         15  There's training of residents. There is more active

         16  enforcement to reduce the number of violations.

         17                 And I'll ask, Mr. Gibson, anything

         18  else you'd like to add to that?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         20  James Gibson, Assistant Commissioner for Veterinary

         21  and Pest Control Services.

         22                 I think one of the important things

         23  that we did in Bushwick that was part of the success

         24  was the fact that we spent a lot of time initially

         25  educating property owners and other community
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          2  members about what we were doing, and what the

          3  things that they could do to help us. And that's

          4  really critically important because we're not alone

          5  going to be able to do this, and it's important to

          6  the community members and each individual to

          7  recognize what it is that they can do. And I think

          8  that by bringing in the community, and this is what

          9  we're going to be doing with the initiative as we

         10  expand it, I think we're going to have much more

         11  success. As was indicated, the enforcement component

         12  was also critical as well, because often times

         13  landlords don't comply with the Health Code as they

         14  should, and because we were able to do enforcement

         15  on a rigorous and ongoing basis, it started to hit

         16  their pocketbooks, and so that they began to comply

         17  with the Health Code as they're required to.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Did you give

         19  them information for their tenants that they could

         20  distribute, and to exactly what their effort was and

         21  what it meant when they didn't package their trash

         22  or when they weren't cooperating?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         24  As part of the inspection process we distribute

         25  information, bilingual information, since Bushwick
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          2  has a large Hispanic population.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes, I'm

          4  familiar with Bushwick.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: So we

          6  did make sure that that language was provided to

          7  each and every household as we were going through

          8  the inspection process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And in terms of

         10  the federal dollars that you were funded for the

         11  project, if this project was to be expanded, is

         12  there any hopes that you would go back to the

         13  federal government to have their financial support?

         14                 Is that something that was discussed

         15  with the initial project?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

         17  I certainly have been in discussions with the CDC,

         18  and they are actually very delighted with the

         19  progress that we made this far, and very excited

         20  that we're expanding this throughout the City.

         21  Because as you may know, the whole reason why we

         22  were given this funding was to develop pilots that

         23  could then be taken nationally for urban areas and

         24  to demonstrate the best way to implement rodent

         25  control efforts, so they're delighted that we're
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          2  expanding this throughout the City.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, they may

          4  be delighted. Are they helping to fund it?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: We

          6  have no monies available now, but they actually have

          7  indicated an interest in trying to find something,

          8  so I think it's something that we could hope for in

          9  the future.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, because

         11  the federal government gets delighted about a lot of

         12  unfunded mandates, and if they're looking at it

         13  nationwide and they're looking at New York City, it

         14  seems to me that if it's to be expanded, we need to

         15  really advocate for that.

         16                 I have one other question, and I have

         17  to be careful at how I phrase this, because when I

         18  leave here, I really don't want well-intentioned

         19  advocates to sort of follow me trail by trail.

         20                 Have you included just what you do

         21  with pigeons and the problems?

         22                 I have to tell you, they're not

         23  unrelated, and if you look at any district where we

         24  have the rodents and overflowing baskets, you also

         25  have tons of pigeons or however they're referred to.
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          2  Schools cannot open their windows because of that,

          3  and as a matter of fact, Dr. Frieden, you have a

          4  wonderful post, it says "Feed a pigeon, you raise a

          5  rat." And you know, where is this included in the

          6  efforts that are being attempted by your agency?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

          8  it certainly is part of our educational efforts, and

          9  as you indicated that was part of an important

         10  message that we wanted to convey. Because it is a

         11  big problem, particularly in parks and other public

         12  areas, and it certainly does contribute to this, and

         13  unfortunately a lot of people don't see the

         14  association. The whole reason why we would want to

         15  have that poster is we wanted to make people

         16  understand --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, what

         18  about public announcements that you would coordinate

         19  with the agencies. I don't see how you could have

         20  such an effort addressing a very critical issue

         21  without really having some public announcements, and

         22  I would think that monies could be found on every

         23  side to handle that.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Public

         25  education, as you say, is key.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Is a key

          4  component of rodent control, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Do you plan on

          6  having any public announcements as to what you're

          7  doing and what's happening?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes. We have

          9  different ways of doing community outreach, some in

         10  the actual communities, some more broadly.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: How about TV

         12  and radio?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Very expensive.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I know that.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Very expensive.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But maybe we

         17  could look at how that could be funded. Because

         18  that's probably the most successful. I have see

         19  where posters are placed. I have seen what happens

         20  with the distribution of literature on the doors.

         21  So, I don't know how we could exclude that.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I wish we had

         23  the money.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, then,

         25  we'll have to work together and see that somehow
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          2  something is put on the radio.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: But one thing

          4  we are doing is working with the MTA to see if we

          5  can get some low cost or free space for ads on

          6  public transport.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I just want to

         10  acknowledge as it was pointed out to me that the

         11  Commissioner has about five minutes, maybe a

         12  generous ten, because of a significant sort of

         13  matter and his deep concern for it, but the Deputy

         14  is staying and I know that there are some others

         15  that want to ask a quick question of you. So, if our

         16  colleagues don't mind, if you just ask a quick,

         17  brief question before the Commissioner leaves, that

         18  will be helpful.

         19                 Council Member Vallone.

         20                 Sorry, Councilman Stewart was on the

         21  line, the phone before and he was before you.

         22                 Dr. Stewart?

         23                 All right, Comrie then Vallone.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chair, and thank you, Madam Chair.
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          2                 Can you give us a breakdown on how

          3  the $1.3 million that the Council restored to the

          4  '04 budget regarding rodent control services as

          5  being sent?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: First off, let

          7  me reiterate what Council Member Perkins said, I

          8  wish I could stay for the whole hearing but I am

          9  going to have to leave shortly.

         10                 We can get you a complete breakdown

         11  of the 2 million restoration. I want to give you

         12  accurate information so we can provide that

         13  subsequently. It will be a variety of measures to

         14  improve enforcement, extermination, and to provide

         15  receptacles in the three communities which require

         16  it most, in addition to the $300,000 that we

         17  mentioned earlier.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Did it

         19  encompass rehiring any of the people that were laid

         20  off?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: In terms of the

         22  people who were laid off, we have a priority to hire

         23  laid off workers whenever we possibly can. However,

         24  in establishing the most effective structure for the

         25  program, the mix of one staff title to another is
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          2  different from what it was before.

          3                 So, we're increasing the number of

          4  exterminators and of sanitarians, again, those who

          5  can exterminate and those who can issue violations

          6  and do inspections, relative to the number of pest

          7  control aides. Which ever pest control aides had

          8  exterminated licenses, we prioritize for hiring

          9  those back into the exterminator titles.

         10                 And to the greatest extent, we also

         11  have hired some of those individuals back into other

         12  parts of the Health Department where they qualify

         13  within civil service rules for existing titles, for

         14  example, as our laboratory helper. In the laboratory

         15  we've hired people back for that role as well. So,

         16  we've tried whenever we can to hire workers back. We

         17  also keep front and center the importance of having

         18  the most effective program possible.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         21  Comrie, can we allow Councilman Vallone to have a

         22  quick question?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes. I just

         24  want a jurisdictional question. Have you put a

         25  policy in place as to who is in charge of
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          2  jurisdictional issues, as far as pest control is

          3  concerned?

          4                 I have a lot of Long Island Railroad

          5  property in my district, construction sites, you

          6  know, I need to get it clear. You don't have to give

          7  it to me right at this minute because I know you're

          8  in a hurry, but I would hope that the Board could

          9  put out some new policy and new writings on

         10  jurisdictional policy that we could sort of clear

         11  the lines of who is supposed to take care of what.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think it's a

         13  very good suggestion and we will follow up with

         14  that. It is a complicated area because it depends on

         15  public or private, immediate or non-immediate, you

         16  have lots of entities, LIRR, MTA or others, that

         17  have their own structures. And, so, as with 3-1-1,

         18  it should be easy for people to get through to who

         19  is responsible and to hold them responsible and

         20  track them for follow-up.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         22  Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         24  Vallone, followed by Council Member Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chair.

          3                 Good afternoon, Mr. Commissioner.

          4  Your testimony you indicated the procedure which

          5  should occur after a 3-1-1 call, I assume, but not

          6  really a time frame other than if there's a rodent

          7  bite you say within 24 hours; what should happen

          8  after a 3-1-1 call? How quickly should somebody get

          9  out there and how long should the whole process take

         10  before the rat infestation is cleaned up?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Our

         12  goal is to currently be out there within two weeks

         13  to do our initial inspection and then basically what

         14  we do after that, we issue a commissioner's order

         15  that requires the owner to clean up the property

         16  within five days. We typically give the property

         17  owner about 12 days to make those corrections. We

         18  hope to have the entire process cleaned up and

         19  addressed within 30 days. Unless it's a major

         20  clean-up, in which case it would take longer.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: But I should

         22  say, there are often reasons where things could take

         23  longer.

         24                 If we can't get access to the

         25  property, for example, if the owner doesn't comply
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          2  it can take longer, and one of the things that we'd

          3  like to do is reduce that, but it is a challenge

          4  because of issues of property access, among others.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: If the owner

          6  does not comply, what happens?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: If the

          8  owner does not comply -- well, we do it at

          9  reinspection of the area with a compliance

         10  inspection after the 12 days that we give the

         11  property owner. If they do not comply, they are

         12  issued a notice of violation, which they are

         13  required to appear before the administrative

         14  tribunal. We will schedule a extermination, if

         15  needed, and a clean up if needed. But they do go

         16  before the administrative tribunal for adjudication,

         17  and they would be issued fines based on the

         18  information that we provide.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I understand

         20  there's some delay, that's not within your

         21  jurisdiction; what's the average time frame then

         22  that you have found? I know your goal is 30 days,

         23  what's the average time that you have found from the

         24  call to your agency, to the time the rat problem is

         25  eradicated?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

          3  don't have the actual average time. I know that

          4  sometimes it does exceed it, as the Commissioner

          5  indicated, there are reasons for that. Our goal is

          6  30 days and we continue to improve and we approach

          7  the 30-day goal. We've been steadily decreasing the

          8  amount of time it takes to respond and complete

          9  rodent issues, and we continue to get better, and

         10  our goal is to respond within 30 days.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I would ask

         12  this Committee to request that information.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely, yes.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I was just

         15  going to say I think it's a good question. There are

         16  complexities in terms of the property type and the

         17  violation type and the complaint type, but we'll do

         18  our best to get you the most accurate information

         19  now, and on an ongoing basis.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And if I could

         21  just add on to this point, as it also relates to the

         22  City going out and fining property owners or

         23  violators, and also the City delivering the clean-up

         24  service and collecting that money back, as I

         25  understanding it, there is a significant amount of
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          2  money, in the City service part anyway, where we

          3  have to do the work and then try to go get

          4  reimbursed for the work that we've done that really

          5  should have been done by the private individual; how

          6  much money is outstanding that the agency hasn't

          7  collected either in fines or in work done?

          8                 I raise that because we should get

          9  the money, we did the work, but also if we had it,

         10  it might be money that we could then use to expand

         11  the rodent abatement programs in the City?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: First let me

         13  clarify that with, for example, fines for entities

         14  which we permit, we have considerably more leeway.

         15  So, if you've got a filthy restaurant and you're not

         16  cleaned up, we shut you. We don't have that

         17  authority with regard to private properties. We

         18  place a lien on the property, and that means that

         19  ultimately when the property is sold we'll get the

         20  money, but it may be years later. And, so, the

         21  collection rate is much lower for these fines, for

         22  example, than other types of fines that the

         23  Department levies and for clean-up bills. In terms

         24  of these actual numbers, we can get you the details,

         25  but Mr. Gibson, who is going to stay with you after
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          2  I leave in about two more minutes, will give you the

          3  details.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If they're quick,

          5  sure.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes, I

          7  can tell you. With regard to the clean-ups, and

          8  there is a difference between fines and fees.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: And

         11  fees are essentially with clean-ups. But, for

         12  instance, in Fiscal Year '03 we collected, and,

         13  again, there is a lag, because those clean-ups that

         14  we took place that year, the money --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You know, since

         16  it's going to be a little longer, maybe we can come

         17  back and just have some of my colleagues ask

         18  questions for the Commissioner. But I think it's

         19  important that we get that information. Thank you.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me just ask

         22  two quick questions, Commissioner, on your way out,

         23  and then we'll hear from Council Member Stewart, who

         24  has returned.

         25                 How much money would you estimate is
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          2  being spent directly in terms of your agency and

          3  particularly with regard to the other agencies

          4  involved on this problem?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I really

          6  couldn't even hazard to guess. It's something what

          7  would be worth exploring and finding out, but each

          8  agency would have to look at it. You have, for

          9  example, exterminators in NYCHA or HPD who are on

         10  staff, what portion of their time is rodent-related

         11  or other pest-related, I couldn't even hazard to

         12  guess.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: It would seem to

         14  me that if it was centralized, it might help in

         15  terms of focusing it and being more effective.

         16                 The other concern I have is that,

         17  again, related to sort of the whimsical nature of

         18  how we are addressing this, under the Giuliani

         19  Administration we had a rat czar that was a deputy

         20  mayor. Under the Bloomberg -- and it was under the

         21  auspices of OEM. Under the Bloomberg Administration

         22  we have a director and it's now under the Mayor's

         23  Office of Operations.

         24                 It's obviously been downgraded from

         25  the perspective of the Deputy Mayor; do you have a
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          2  Deputy Mayor within the Administration that's

          3  responsible for this?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes,

          5  absolutely. I think one thing that's important --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Who is the

          7  Deputy Mayor that's overseeing this?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Marc Shaw.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: One thing

         11  that's important to emphasize is that within this

         12  Administration the philosophy is very much to give

         13  the agencies the authority to take the action that

         14  they need to take, and to hold them accountable for

         15  those actions, and when there is something like

         16  this, which requires a multi-agency response, it is

         17  essential that the Mayor's Office of Operations

         18  which reports to Marc Shaw specifically oversees

         19  that, and that is the way to get the most

         20  effectiveness, it is in no way a downgrading of this

         21  issue at all.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, I just

         23  want to make sure that it wasn't, and I'm glad to

         24  hear that Marc Shaw is now the rat czar in replacing

         25  Deputy Mayor Joe Lhota and at our next hearing we'll
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          2  have him come in as Deputy Mayor did in the past to

          3  sort of help us understand exactly what is going on

          4  over there.

          5                 Thank you very much, Commissioner. I

          6  have a quick question for the Deputy Commissioner.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Thank you. I'm

          8  sorry I have to leave for another commitment.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You wanted to

         10  ask the Commissioner? Commissioner, can you indulge

         11  us for one quick question from the Doctor, one of

         12  your fellow medical professionals?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair.

         15                 Commissioner, in light of the fact

         16  that in some neighborhoods we have sanitation

         17  pick-up might be, it says twice a week, but

         18  sometimes is once, sometimes is every other week,

         19  and in those neighborhoods we may not be complaining

         20  as we should, and that means that we may have

         21  problems with storage of garbage.

         22                 I'm looking at the fact that if you

         23  have to levy a fine, $300 because they have garbage,

         24  that was maybe stored in the back or some place,

         25  then within two years, that fine, if they happen to
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          2  have another fine, is doubled.

          3                 How do you respond to that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Fines change

          5  behavior. We don't want to collect the fines, we

          6  want the behavior to change. And, so, the challenge

          7  here is to make the fines sufficient so that they

          8  don't become simply the cost of doing business, and

          9  make them sufficient so that building owners will

         10  comply with the code, will abate hazards, will make

         11  sure that garbage is correctly stored. The first

         12  step is that in the building, it needs to be stored

         13  in a rodent-resistant area, it needs to be in

         14  rodent-resistant containers, and it needs to be

         15  brought out to the street with the minimum possible

         16  time in between bringing it to the street and being

         17  collected by sanitation.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, it should

         19  leave to the Sanitation Department, that make sure

         20  that they do their part of this adhering to the

         21  rules; in other words, garbage should be picked up

         22  twice a week.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: As per their

         24  schedule. It should be as per their schedule.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And so that
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          2  is not happening, we can use that as an excuse.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I don't know,

          4  in an individual case you'd have to look at what

          5  Sanitation was doing and what the violation was.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The other

          7  question I have is to do with the Task Force. You

          8  are not in favor of the task force, but isn't it

          9  what you have right now? You're not in favor of

         10  doing a board, having a board; isn't the task force

         11  that you have right now the same thing as a board,

         12  and that the board will be there all year round, but

         13  the task force is only when called upon?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I do think that

         15  there are some similarities. The task force is not

         16  an episodic thing. The task force is a standing task

         17  force that will continue, and for which we would

         18  invite any participation that you'd like to have.

         19                 The way they differ is that the --

         20  the way to get effective action is to make the

         21  currently existing programs function, and to

         22  optimise them, to make them accountable for their

         23  performance, to improve performance, to get best

         24  practices, to get better coordination among

         25  agencies, not to create another structure, but to
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          2  strengthen the structures that currently exist and

          3  hold them accountable, and that's what the task

          4  force is about.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,

          6  thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you,

          8  again, Commissioner, for your attendance and for

          9  staying a little longer than you had anticipated. I

         10  look forward to getting back to you with regard to

         11  this matter and, again, the centralizing and

         12  institutionalizing this effort so that the public

         13  can have some sense of reliability about the City's

         14  commitment and approach to it.

         15                 Now we're going to hear from Dr.

         16  Gibson, James Gibson.

         17                 Mike, Council Member Nelson.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Maybe we could go

         19  back to the service money.

         20                 Just so the information that I have

         21  is that there's $2.0 million in monies that are

         22  associated with services that the City delivered,

         23  that, you know, clean-up or whatever that we haven't

         24  been reimbursed for, and I think it was 1997, 10,000

         25  outstanding liens on properties. So, if you could
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          2  take us through that. And my question I think is

          3  pretty obvious that we'll be missing an opportunity

          4  to get additional resources and what should the

          5  Department be doing to try to better maximize the

          6  collection of monies owed for services or fines or

          7  fees.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

          9  when you go over the most recent years, when there's

         10  been a lot of gentrification, a lot of exchange of

         11  properties, the amount of monies that we've been

         12  increasing have actually been substantial, and I'll

         13  go through the numbers, because the totals actually

         14  are encouraging, but, remember, these go back years,

         15  they can go back as long as 20 years, and so we are

         16  still behind in the number of fines that we are

         17  collecting.

         18                 I'll go through, for instance, in

         19  Fiscal Year 2000, we billed $5.5 million and we

         20  collected only $2.3 million. In Fiscal Year '02, we

         21  billed $6.2 million and collected only $2.6 million.

         22  Again, there is a lag in the time, and, so,

         23  basically it occurs when property transfers occur.

         24                 However, in 2002, Fiscal Year 2002,

         25  we billed 3.8 million, but we collected 4.4 million.
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          2  Similarly in Fiscal Year '03, we billed 3.8 million

          3  and collected 4.7 million. And so far this year we

          4  have billed $934,000 and collected $1.1 million. So,

          5  the last few years there has been an increase, as

          6  there has been a turnover in property, and we have

          7  taken advantage of those liens that we've had. So,

          8  there has been an increase in the monies we

          9  collected, but, again, when you go back to the

         10  properties 20 years ago, I think we're still in a

         11  deficit, as far as the amount of monies that we

         12  billed versus collected.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: What can we be

         14  doing as City government maximize our collection,

         15  because it sounds like although the numbers are

         16  tracking upward, which is good, and our collections,

         17  by the Department's own admission, that's a result

         18  of outside factors, gentrification and property

         19  sales, so what could we be doing inside government

         20  to better get these monies collected? You know,

         21  recognizing they're complex and it's difficult, but

         22  what could we be doing? Because in skimming the Task

         23  Force Report, I didn't notice anything referencing

         24  that.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I
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          2  think, as you indicated, it is very difficult

          3  because we don't permit private residences, and, so,

          4  we don't have that stick that we do with restaurants

          5  and other properties that we permit. So, often times

          6  the only opportunity that we can get those monies is

          7  through the lien process, and when that property is

          8  sold, that's when we recoup that money, and that's

          9  really the only process that I'm aware of that we

         10  can actually do that. I'm not sure if the City

         11  Council could come up with something, some

         12  legislative proposal that might improve that, but I

         13  can't think of anything.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: One thing, and I

         15  think this goes back to Intro. 534 and why it might

         16  be a good idea to have a standing board that was

         17  constantly revisiting and looking at these issues,

         18  you know, something that immediately comes to mind

         19  is some of these properties, I don't know but it's

         20  entirely possible that some of these properties, you

         21  know, are buildings, are apartment buildings, that

         22  are having people placed in them by City agencies,

         23  and that on one hand, these might be properties,

         24  apartment buildings that owe the City money for

         25  clean up or abatement work, but on the other hand
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          2  are gaining revenue by the Department of Homeless

          3  Services, Human Resources Administration, whomever,

          4  placing people in there where those landlords make a

          5  good deal of money from the rents that are being

          6  paid. We don't know whether we're giving money to

          7  somebody who owes us money. I think if we had a

          8  standing agency where DOH was engaging with DHS or

          9  HRA bringing them in, we might find opportunities

         10  like that. Do you know if any of the people who owe

         11  us money in fines or work done are benefitting

         12  through rent monies from DHS or HRA?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

         14  don't know offhand, but I think it's a great

         15  suggestion. We could look at that --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I actually think

         17  it's a great suggestion, too, might I say myself. It

         18  just came into my head out of nowhere.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: But

         20  there is a mechanism by which we can do that.

         21  Obviously, we have the task force, there are

         22  multiple agencies that sit on that task force, and

         23  we can certainly get the Department of Finance, and

         24  all the agencies that are in there, Homeless

         25  Services is part of the task force, so we can look
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          2  at that and I think it's a very good point. And I

          3  think we can maybe try to find out whether or not

          4  there are any opportunities to recoup that money

          5  that way.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And I just think

          7  having 534 and having this as a standing thing which

          8  also has people outside of the agencies involved

          9  might bring other, you know, creative ideas to the

         10  table that sometimes are which just insular and just

         11  City agencies doesn't happen.

         12                 Council Member Sears, did you have a

         13  follow-up question?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Actually it was

         15  really part of what you raised, but it would seem

         16  that even without having a special task force, the

         17  Finance Department knows exactly who gets what tax

         18  abatements, and it would seem that within the

         19  technology that we have today, it is very easy to

         20  pull up on a system for your agency, because

         21  actually 20 years waiting for someone to sell a

         22  house, many times those homes are transferred to

         23  children, and I don't know what the process is

         24  there, but 20 years is an uncollectible, it's a bad

         25  debt, and that can go on forever, and it would seem
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          2  that in instances in apartment buildings where there

          3  are tax abatements, for one reason or another, for

          4  SCRIE or what have you, is that a difficult thing

          5  for your agency to do; in other words, in working

          6  with the Finance Department?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No, I

          8  think it is a good idea, and we will follow up on

          9  that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Because it's

         11  much easier to deal with tax abatements than

         12  anything else at the moment because it's an absolute

         13  given and it's right there in their files.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         15  And we will certainly follow up on that, and we will

         16  be working with the Department of Finance and see if

         17  there's any way we can get that information, and

         18  then put pressure on property owners to pay that

         19  quicker.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, it seems

         21  that we really -- because, you know, every time we

         22  have to raise taxes, and we've gone through a big

         23  thing with property taxes, it is well known

         24  throughout the City that this City has in arrears

         25  much, much money that is due them, and it gets
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          2  harder to deal with a delivery of services, and the

          3  fact that we have to raise taxes that you only know

          4  too well, while at the same time, there is a column

          5  out there that is really a negative, and that column

          6  seems to grow more and more and more.

          7                 The agencies have to address this.

          8  It's not something that we can just say that's not

          9  within our area to do. I think that we've got to

         10  pull all of the resources together to do that.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         12  and I just want to reiterate that the primary

         13  purpose of this is not to collect revenue, it's--

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's to correct

         15  the wrongs.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         17  Exactly.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Absolutely.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: And,

         20  so, if there is more pressure put on property owners

         21  to pay these fines, then they may think twice about

         22  ignoring the notice of violations that they receive

         23  as part of the violations of the Health Code.

         24                 So I think it's a great idea and we

         25  will follow up on that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Can I just say,

          3  I think fines, you're right, it is to change

          4  behavior, but if the City has actually gone in and

          5  cleaned it up, we absolutely should get that money,

          6  because that's a different situation, that's beyond

          7  trying to change behavior, we've done something that

          8  person should have done and we should be reimbursed

          9  for it.

         10                 I mean, other taxpayers have paid for

         11  the errors of that taxpayer and they should be

         12  reimbursed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, Madam

         14  Chair, for instance, with the empty lots, which has

         15  a huge clean-up around the City, your Department

         16  certainly would know, how long has the monies

         17  reimbursed to the City to do that, how long are they

         18  outstanding? Because these empty lots are a haven

         19  for everything. The Department of Health has been

         20  wonderful in cleaning up some of the areas in my

         21  district and we've had difficulties with some of

         22  those owners, and the fact that, you know, they seem

         23  to know that they can go on those roads for a long

         24  time before they reimburse. So, maybe you need to

         25  really look at how long and what's outstanding in
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          2  the clean-up of these lots, and it seems to be in

          3  your purview that you could collect those monies.

          4                 Cleaning lots is very expensive, and

          5  it's done at the taxpayers' -- it's very costly.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: And I

          7  will make note that there is interest accumulated as

          8  well as part of those clean-ups. So, by the time the

          9  person does pay it, it's often times much greater

         10  than the initial cost of the clean-up itself.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Is that

         12  interest negotiable when it comes time for them to

         13  pay? I don't know, I'm asking.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         15  if they file a complaint with the Comptroller's

         16  Office, it can be negotiated through our legal

         17  process.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's really

         19  what's an outrage.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         22  Reed.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Yes, I don't

         24  mean to argue with my colleague about this, but I

         25  think that the emphasis is not on the Department of
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          2  Health, but collection. This is an overall problem

          3  that we've been addressing with the Environmental

          4  Review Board, it makes no sense that we have fines

          5  for elevators, for everything that the City

          6  Collection agency, first of all, that everything is

          7  in, so much of it is in that particular agency. Or

          8  the Finance Department, I think we ought to, and I

          9  know we have, tried to have hearings about the

         10  collectibility of it, I would hate to see us, you

         11  know, burden the Department of Health, if we're

         12  trying to get them to deal with rats, let's have

         13  them deal with rats, and the larger two-footed rats

         14  that aren't paying the bill, we'll have some other

         15  agency deal with that.

         16                 Now, the question I was told, perhaps

         17  somebody can come up and testify to this, that once

         18  the Department of Health issues a violation, and a

         19  fine, it's then given to a collection agency? Was

         20  that what somebody was whispering in my ear?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         22  eventually --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Not eventually.

         24  I'm talking about after someone is given a fine,

         25  it's given to the Department of Finance to collect,
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          2  right?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

          4  it goes before the Administrative Tribunal. The

          5  Administrative Tribunal hears the violations, then

          6  eventually they will be billed, the owner will be

          7  billed. If they ignore the bill, then eventually it

          8  will go to a collection agency.

          9                 So, the Department of Finance sends

         10  out the initial notice -- well, somebody come up

         11  here and stop shaking your head and answer the

         12  question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Before you do

         14  that, before as ordered by Council Member Reed,

         15  please identify yourself for the record.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         17                 MR. LOPEZ: My name is Wilfredo Lopez,

         18  I'm the General Counsel for Health at the New York

         19  City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         20                 I think it's important to distinguish

         21  between the fines and the fees for the services

         22  which result in liens.

         23                 With regard to fines that are imposed

         24  by the Administrative Tribunal, there is an internal

         25  dunning process that goes on in an effort to collect
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          2  that money.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Internal to

          4  what?

          5                 MR. LOPEZ: The Department of Health

          6  and Mental Hygiene.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: The Department

          8  of Health does try to collect these fines?

          9                 You don't immediately pass these off

         10  to some other agency?

         11                 MR. LOPEZ: No, we don't.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: All right.

         13                 MR. LOPEZ: And in addition to that,

         14  the Department has a contract with a collection

         15  agency that if the fine is not paid within that

         16  dunning period, the fine is then referred to the

         17  collection agency, and collection efforts are made,

         18  including the possibility of converting that fine

         19  into a money judgment, all without going through the

         20  Department of Finance.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, pardon me,

         22  but Madam Chair, that might be where your money went

         23  to, rather than to clean it up it might be in that

         24  collection. So, we might want to take a look.

         25                 Do you know how much that is costing
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          2  us? Is the cost of this collection, do you do this

          3  internally? The Department of Health has people

          4  within its own personnel that do collections, right?

          5  Send out notices and fines, right?

          6                 MR. LOPEZ: The initial dunning

          7  process is internal.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And if the check

          9  comes in, finally I send the check, who do I send

         10  the check to, the Department of Health?

         11                 MR. LOPEZ: Yes. And then it gets --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Then you put it

         13  in the general fund?

         14                 MR. LOPEZ: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But you have a

         16  record of whether it's been collected or not?

         17                 MR. LOPEZ: Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And that's in

         19  your overall budget, or is that specific to this?

         20                 If we're talking about putting money

         21  in here that we don't see spent, can we find it over

         22  there?

         23                 MR. LOPEZ: I'm not the fiscal guy, I

         24  don't know how the accounting is done. But the fines

         25  are -- the result of those notices of violation go
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          2  through the tribunal. They're not related to the

          3  fees for the clean-up services that result in liens.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do you think you

          5  can do it better? Some other way?

          6                 MR. LOPEZ: The collection of the

          7  fines?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Yes.

          9                 MR. LOPEZ: I think this is the most

         10  cost-effective way of doing it. We have the internal

         11  dunning process, the alternative would be for the

         12  City to then set up its own collection agency, go

         13  through money judgment processes and all of that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You said that

         15  the fees are what gets a lien on the house.

         16                 MR. LOPEZ: That's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So what happens

         18  if you don't pay the fine? Nothing?

         19                 MR. LOPEZ: The fines go through the

         20  collection agency. They go through their collection

         21  process --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And then you

         23  write it off as a bad debt?

         24                 MR. LOPEZ: Which may result in a

         25  money judgment that may end up resulting in a money
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          2  judgment lien that gets filed in court but is not a

          3  tax lien that results through the Department of

          4  Finance.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: The tax lien

          6  only results when you have to go clean up the ladder

          7  or something and then they don't pay for that?

          8                 MR. LOPEZ: That's correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, thank you,

         10  Council Member.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just had a

         12  couple of questions I wanted to ask regarding the

         13  pest control aides. Is it correct that 36 pest

         14  control aides were laid off last year and five

         15  supervisors?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: It was

         17  approximately that number, yes. I don't know the

         18  exact figure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And then they were

         20  laid off much like the 300 sanitation workers prior

         21  to the Council and the Mayor finishing the budget

         22  negotiation.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         24  Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Which seemed odd
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          2  to me, but certainly I guess it's the Mayor's

          3  prerogative.

          4                 The money that had paid -- that was

          5  budgeted to pay for those pest control aides and

          6  those supervisors was restored to the budget.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

          8  correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But the pest

         10  control aides and their supervisors were not

         11  rehired.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         13  correct. The thought was that the monies would be

         14  better spent utilizing hiring additional sanitarians

         15  and exterminators, as the Commissioner indicated,

         16  because we think that would be a better expenditure

         17  of funds, and we would able to actually have a more

         18  effective control effort by hiring those

         19  individuals.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Two questions. I

         21  mean, first, I just have to kind of restate, and

         22  we've been down this road before, the Health

         23  Committee and the Department, as it relates to

         24  non-public school nurses. Maybe the decision you

         25  made in that case, maybe the decision you made in
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          2  this case, maybe they are the better decision, but

          3  they were not in this case or in that case the

          4  agreement that the Council and the Mayor came to.

          5                 As I understand it, we put the money

          6  back in for 36 pest control aides and their

          7  supervisors, and that was the agreement. And at the

          8  hearing on the budget with Commissioner Frieden, I

          9  asked specifically whether OMB would be speaking to

         10  the agency or whether we needed to have a DOH/MH

         11  person in City Hall 24/7 to make sure that

         12  commitments made by OMB were the commitments that

         13  the agency would keep.

         14                 Now, thankfully this wasn't a cut,

         15  but you all got the money restored, we thought we

         16  were restoring it for 36 pest control aides and five

         17  supervisors, and, again, maybe what you're spending

         18  it for was better, but it wasn't what was agreed to,

         19  and you were never notified that that was the case.

         20  In fact, we were notified of this when this hearing

         21  was scheduled by District Council 37 who both

         22  represents the people who were laid off, and I also

         23  think the people who were rehired. So, I have

         24  concern, and would like it communicated to the

         25  Commissioner, (a) the concern about this, (b) that
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          2  I'm very upset because it's a continuing pattern

          3  that I thought we had moved beyond, and, three,

          4  would like the Committee to be provided with what

          5  other redirection or reallocation of money within

          6  the Department of Health has occurred that differed

          7  from what was agreed to in the budget. And we're

          8  going to be having a hearing in the near future

          9  about the Council's restorations to find out where

         10  they're at, and I'd like that specific outlines on

         11  how things had been redirected, reshifted,

         12  refocused, whatever, prior to that hearing.

         13                 Now, as it relates to you hiring the

         14  licensed exterminators instead of the PCAs, the

         15  licensed exterminators can actually put out the

         16  poison versus the PCAs who can only put out the

         17  traps.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

         19  the City pest control aides, their job is to pick up

         20  garbage and eliminate weeds and other debris that

         21  might create conditions conducive to rodent

         22  infestations. The exterminators are actually trained

         23  and licensed by the State Department of

         24  Environmental Conservation, and they are then

         25  allowed to be pesticide applicators so they can
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          2  apply pesticides to kill rodents.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But PCAs could put

          4  out traps that don't include chemicals, correct?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Live

          6  traps you mean? Yes, it's possible. We don't utilize

          7  those. Yes, we do not believe those are effective.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. So, so, now

          9  with the 36 PCAs being laid off, and us having these

         10  exterminators, which, you know, may be a good thing,

         11  it may be that the rats are getting killed by the

         12  exterminators, but then it sounds to me like the

         13  lots are still staying dirty, so by not having

         14  people who are actually cleaning them up, don't we

         15  have a situation where the rats that were killed

         16  will be dead, but more rats will come back because

         17  the garbage and the problem and in addition the

         18  eyesore will remain in the neighborhood?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

         20  first of all, we still have a substantial number of

         21  CPCAs.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: How many?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: We

         24  have approximately 100 CPCAs.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, that's a big
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          2  cut. If you had 136 and now you have 100, that's not

          3  an insignificant cut.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Right.

          5  But what we're doing is prioritizing those

          6  situations that pose the greatest risk, and we're

          7  also partnering with the Department of Sanitation,

          8  in fact we are creating memorandum of understanding

          9  whereby we can utilize their equipment to help

         10  remove situations that are conducive to using

         11  bobcats and other equipment to actually speed up the

         12  process.

         13                 So, we expect to get some

         14  productivity gains through that mechanization

         15  process.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: How many fewer

         17  lots have been cleaned up to date this fiscal year

         18  than last year, when we had 136 PCAs, versus today

         19  when we have 100?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

         21  don't have those numbers. We can certainly get them

         22  to you.

         23                 I just want to make one point as

         24  well. With the increase enforcement actions, what

         25  we're trying to do and also the education, we really
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          2  want to convey to property owners their role and

          3  their important role. We could hire a large number

          4  of CPCAs, but the reality is, is that it's really

          5  the responsibility of the property owners to clean

          6  up their properties and we think that that's the

          7  most effective way in which we're going to reduce

          8  the rodent infestations associated with degree and

          9  other garbage left on private properties.

         10                 So we think that the increased

         11  enforcement capability that we're going to have by

         12  having a 50 percent increase in the number of

         13  sanitarians is actually going to improve that, as

         14  we're hoping that will happen.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But we don't know

         16  that it will. We didn't pilot project it somewhere.

         17  We're pilot projecting the Bushwick initiative,

         18  which seems to be something that everybody could

         19  have told without piloting that it was a good model

         20  that we should do in other places, but we didn't

         21  pilot the sanitarian model.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: We

         23  haven't looked specifically at lot clean-ups, but as

         24  Commissioner Frieden indicated in his testimony, the

         25  amount of properties that were non-compliant dropped
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          2  dramatically in Bushwick, and we would expect to see

          3  the same thing in these other parts of the City that

          4  we're doing it.

          5                 So, I would disagree. I would think

          6  that when you have increased enforcement efforts and

          7  multiple inspections in a short period of time,

          8  property owners are going to get the message that

          9  it's not going to be a one-time inspection process,

         10  this is going to be two, three times. And if it's an

         11  egregious situation we may go back more, as

         12  frequently as we can, and so that is going to have

         13  an impact on them with regards to the NOVs, so we're

         14  hoping that property owners will take the

         15  responsibility themselves and clean up their own

         16  lots.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Hopefully you'll

         18  be right. I remain a little skeptical that these

         19  folks who have let the situations deteriorate so

         20  badly are all of a sudden going to see the light.

         21  And, again, if we could get that information, and if

         22  you could express my concern to the Commissioner?

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I have a

         25  question or two, Commissioner.
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          2                 It's my understanding that Marc Shaw

          3  is the Deputy Mayor in charge of this task force

          4  so-to-speak. Does he get a chance to meet at all

          5  with you?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: The

          7  Commissioner meets with Deputy Mayor Shaw on a

          8  regular basis, and this is certainly one of the

          9  items that he discusses with the Deputy Mayor on a

         10  regular basis. I have not had the privilege of

         11  meeting with Deputy Mayor Shaw to discuss this.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         13                 Do you have any idea how often they

         14  meet with regard to this task force and the work of

         15  the task force?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I know

         17  it's at least biweekly when the Commissioner meets

         18  with the Deputy Mayor. It may actually be more

         19  frequently, but I know for certain it's at least

         20  biweekly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         22                 Let me ask, just so I'm clear, you

         23  are the Assistant Commissioner for Veterinary and

         24  Pest Control Services; what are the veterinary

         25  services, more or less, that you're involved with?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: It's

          3  basically OVPS conditions --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: It's basically

          5  what?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: It's

          7  the Office of Veterinary Pest Control's --

          8  Veterinary Public Health Services. What that office

          9  primarily is there for is to protect people from

         10  animals. So basically we do rabies prevention, we do

         11  dangerous dogs, we do those sorts of things,

         12  raccoons. We have a contract with the Center for

         13  Animal Care and Control, which is the Animal Control

         14  Agency within the City, and we do a number of

         15  things: Pigeon nuisance complaints, dog nuisance

         16  complaints.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Like, for

         18  instance, the mosquitoes and the West Nile Virus, is

         19  that something that your office has some --

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         21  that's one of the three offices that I oversee, it's

         22  the Office of Vector Surveillance and Control and

         23  the West Nile Virus is one of the programs I

         24  oversee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And, for
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          2  instance, when the tigers are found in the Public

          3  Housing Authority, does your office get involved

          4  with that?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

          6  we work closely with the Police Department on that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And the

          8  alligators that are found?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, of course,

         11  in your portfolio, last but not least, my rats.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         13  sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, how much of

         15  your time do you spend on these other matters, like

         16  comparison to the time you have to spend on the

         17  rats?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Much

         19  of the work is seasonal. Obviously during the peak

         20  of the summer season most of my time is spent --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: When is the

         22  tiger season?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

         24  luckily we've only had one of those instances that

         25  I'm aware of, but certainly during August,
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          2  September, when it's peak mosquito season where it's

          3  most likely that there will be a transmission of

          4  West Nile Virus for humans, that's where I spend

          5  most of my time on West Nile. But certainly a large

          6  portion of my time, and it's certainly my biggest

          7  program, the Pest Control Program, so I spend a

          8  large amount of my time working on rodent control.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Coincidentally,

         10  the rat season is about the same time as the West

         11  Nile Virus.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         13  correct. That's why I probably put in, you know,

         14  certainly triple, at least double the amount of

         15  hours that is required by City civil service.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I wonder how it

         17  would be if you could focus simply on the rats?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

         19  I think they're all important programs --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Not to suggest

         21  that none of them are more or less important. I'm

         22  just wondering, if you had to spend more time, 100

         23  percent of your time to rats, do you think you could

         24  be more effective as it relates to the rat problem?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I
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          2  think one of the reasons why the programs that I

          3  oversee are together, is because there's a large

          4  amount of overlap. For instance, there's a large

          5  amount of overlap in the types of services we

          6  provide. For instance, exterminations. We have folks

          7  that will provide resources to each of the programs

          8  as needed, and, so, I think it makes sense to have

          9  those three offices together, because what we do is

         10  we provide assistance to each other as needed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Do you have an

         12  idea of how much money is spent on the rodent

         13  problem, particularly in your agency, if you put it

         14  all together how much would that add up to? All

         15  aspects of what you do, as far as that's concerned.

         16  And maybe while you're searching for that, the

         17  representatives from the other agencies can give

         18  some thought to it, because I would like to find out

         19  from you, as well, if you know.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Our

         21  budget this year is $8.2 million for rodent control

         22  efforts within my office.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. And with

         24  respect to the other agencies that are represented,

         25  can you identify yourselves and give us an idea how
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          2  much you spend in terms of your own agency? If

          3  possible.

          4                 Just by all means join us.

          5                 MR. CANTIA: I'm Peter Cantia. I'm the

          6  Assistant Deputy General Manager of Operations for

          7  the New York City Housing Authority.

          8                 We employ 89 exterminators and

          9  supervisors. I don't have a cost figure for their

         10  salaries, but our major efforts over the last ten

         11  years in dealing with rodent infestation has been

         12  the installation of exterior compactors. We strongly

         13  believe that eliminating waste from the properties

         14  into remote areas on our developments has been a

         15  significant contributing factor in improvement in

         16  our development.

         17                 We spent to date over $18 million and

         18  currently are covering 89 developments with exterior

         19  compactors. This is a much more efficient method for

         20  our trash removal and obviously has also benefits

         21  for the Sanitation Department because it's a

         22  mechanized approach.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: 89 developments

         24  out of a total of?

         25                 MR. CANTIA: 345. And actually, I
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          2  should add that those 89 developments are also

          3  servicing other developments nearby that do not have

          4  the grounds sufficient to have their own -- so,

          5  we're actually covering 108 developments, almost a

          6  third, and we now have in our development budget an

          7  additional $7.4 million that will install 28

          8  additional, these exterior compactors. So, this is a

          9  program that we believe will have significant

         10  improvement and enable us to be much more productive

         11  on how we handle our trash, which I believe is a

         12  significant contributor in eliminating rodents from

         13  our developments.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I get good

         15  reports from some residents about that. What

         16  percentage of that money is City money?

         17                 MR. CANTIA: This is all federal

         18  money.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: This is all

         20  federal money?

         21                 MR. CANTIA: Federal and capital

         22  money.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And capital. And

         24  the 89 employees, they're paid through federal funds

         25  as well?
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          2                 MR. CANTIA: Yes. Yes. Our agency is

          3  100 percent federal operating money, but we do get

          4  some capital money from the City and the State.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And is any of

          6  that capital money used towards rodent problems?

          7                 MR. CANTIA: I don't believe so, no.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Would you

          9  double-check for us, just so we can be sure, when

         10  you get a chance, and let us know? And thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 Is there a representative from any of

         13  the other agencies that can help us with this

         14  question?

         15                 Don't be shy.

         16                 MR. McKEEHAN: Good afternoon. I'm

         17  Peter McKeehan. I'm Chief of Collection Operations,

         18  Department of Sanitation.

         19                 At this time we really don't have any

         20  budget number. Most of our efforts of rodent

         21  infestation is tied into our normal collection

         22  operations, and therefore we have no number at this

         23  point. I can go back and we can study the issue and

         24  come back with an answer for you.

         25                 Thank you very much. I appreciate
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          2  that. Thank you. Anyone else want to venture a

          3  guess, or give us an idea?

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: Good

          5  afternoon, Council Member. My name is Luis Saragon.

          6  I am the Associate Commissioner for Property

          7  Services at HPD.

          8                 While I don't have a specific dollar

          9  figure to give you now, what I can tell you is, give

         10  you a little bit of an overview of the different

         11  categories of properties that we have and that we do

         12  extermination in.

         13                 We currently manage approximately

         14  2,700 vacant lots throughout the City of New York.

         15  We inspect these lots every six weeks, and we clean

         16  them, we weed them and we exterminate them as

         17  needed.

         18                 We then have 550 occupied residential

         19  buildings, within the Division of Property

         20  Management. We exterminate on a monthly basis within

         21  those properties.

         22                 We also have 450 occupied buildings

         23  within the Division of Alternative Management. Those

         24  are the properties that are no longer managed by

         25  HPD, are transitioning through one of our programs

                                                            96

          1  HEALTH AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  into private ownership. Those properties are then

          3  exterminated also in a monthly basis, but by each

          4  individual group responsible for that property.

          5                 And then we have 350 vacant buildings

          6  which are silled up, managed by us. We inspect them

          7  on a monthly basis, and we'll do extermination on an

          8  as needed basis.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: With respect to,

         10  you said you have 2,700 vacant lots?

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON:

         12  That's correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: What percentage

         14  do you think are rodent-infested?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: Well,

         16  as we work very closely with DOH and Sanitation,

         17  first of all, let me tell you that, and throughout

         18  the year we face West Nile Virus issues, we face

         19  rodent issues, at all of our lots, including also

         20  some wild dogs that we have to take care of, too. No

         21  tigers by the way.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: No tigers.

         23                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: No

         24  tigers.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: But

          3  to answer that question, I mean that's a tough

          4  question to answer because I think that these issues

          5  come up at different points in time at all of these

          6  locations.

          7                 Now because of our constant visits,

          8  and our constant work not only at the site, but

          9  within the community, as you well know, at HPD we

         10  work street-by-street block-by-block so that we can

         11  have an impact on each neighborhood, those issues

         12  are addressed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: How does the

         14  task force -- do you sit on the task force?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: We

         16  have an HPD representative at the task force.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Clearly, I know

         18  in many of the communities the vacant lots are the

         19  breeding ground for the rodent infestation, and I

         20  would imagine that this would be a significant piece

         21  of information for the task force to consider as it

         22  begins to try to eradicate the problem, particularly

         23  in those areas. Perhaps the person that sits with

         24  the task force, who is that person from HPD, by the

         25  way?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON:

          3  Victor Hernandez, who is here with me today. He's

          4  actually the director of a vacant lot unit. In

          5  response to the issues that you're addressing right

          6  now, we actually created within HPD a vacant lot

          7  unit. And in order to address the problems within

          8  residential communities, we actually have identified

          9  specific lots that we have gone out and not only

         10  cleaned, but fenced, to prevent further dumping so

         11  that the problem can be addressed.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The assumption

         13  is that those are lots that either are actively

         14  rodent infested or potentially rodent infested. Do

         15  you have any idea what the cost is for -- how many

         16  of those such lots have been identified and what

         17  we're spending?

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: I

         19  don't have figures with me here today. We can

         20  certainly get that for you. We visit every lot every

         21  six weeks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Every six weeks

         23  you visit 2,700 lots throughout the City?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON:

         25  Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And what

          3  percentage of them do you think now are fenced and

          4  cleaned and rodent-free?

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: The

          6  vast majority of the lots within areas where we have

          7  either schools or residential property, those have

          8  been fenced.

          9                 Where we have lots that have not been

         10  fenced, where we have very large parcels of land

         11  that just make it so that they cannot be fenced.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I just

         13  want to add one thing. As part of the task force --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I assume these

         15  are public lots, sir?

         16                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: All

         17  that I'm talking about, lots that are under HPD

         18  jurisdiction, those are all the lots that I am

         19  addressing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Commissioner?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         22  As part of the task force, and I don't know if

         23  you've had a chance to review the Mayor's 60-day

         24  report yet, but all City-owned property within the

         25  targeted communities, East Harlem, Central Harlem,
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          2  South Bronx, and the expanded area of Brooklyn, have

          3  been inventoried. All of the City-owned agencies

          4  that own or manage property within those boundaries

          5  have been inventoried to include HPD vacant lots.

          6                 We have put those together in a

          7  spread sheet. The Mayor's Office is currently

          8  analyzing that information.

          9                 So, that information, although it's

         10  not available at this point, it will be available at

         11  some point, and that will actually indicate which of

         12  those vacant problems, have rodent infestations,

         13  have garbage on them, have fences, and that sort of

         14  thing, and then we're going to work towards, and

         15  each City agency is required to put together a

         16  remediation plan to address any kind of rodent

         17  problems that they may be, or conditions conducive

         18  to rodent infestations. So that information will be

         19  forthcoming.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, thank you

         21  very much. And if you could sort of quantify in

         22  dollars and cents what it's actually costing with

         23  respect to those lots that are in the inventory, I

         24  think it would give us a good picture of exactly how

         25  much we're spending. I think it's very important
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          2  that we know how much we're spending. The

          3  Commissioner raised the whole question of cost in

          4  response to our concern about centralizing and

          5  institutionalizing this effort, it's possible if we

          6  brought all those costs under one roof, under the

          7  able leadership of someone like yourself, we might

          8  be able to get a better grip on this matter.

          9                 Is there another agency represented

         10  that would like to share what their agency is doing?

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Let me

         13  just add one thing. As I indicated, there are a few

         14  City agencies that were here present, but there are

         15  19 City agencies represented on the task force, and

         16  all 19 of those agencies have performed inventories

         17  on the properties within the targeted areas, and all

         18  19 of those agencies are expected to determine what

         19  level of infestations are present on their property

         20  and develop remediation plans for all 19 of those

         21  agencies. We will have information for it at some

         22  point in the future.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         24                 One final question for me,

         25  Commissioner.
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          2                 Is the Office for Emergency

          3  Management still a part of this task force?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

          5  it's only still an integral part of that task force.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Only what?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: They

          8  are an integral part of the task force. In fact,

          9  they are still performing the responsibilities that

         10  they did prior to the establishment of the bigger

         11  task force under the Mayor's Office of Operations.

         12                 The primary function of the OEM Task

         13  Force, as you know, has been on responding to large

         14  infestations and eradicating those infestations, and

         15  so that effort is ongoing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: But I just want

         17  to be clear, because in the past they basically were

         18  sort of the meeting ground for the various agencies.

         19  Now they seem, as per your present definition, to be

         20  more directly involved in eradicating, as opposed to

         21  sort of coordinating.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No,

         23  they coordinate. Basically as part of the larger

         24  process --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, still
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          2  coordinating?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

          4  correct.

          5                 In fact, they are coordinating the

          6  efforts. Other multiple agencies that go to a site;

          7  for instance, if a site involves a park, an MTA

          8  location, private property that DOH would be

          9  responsible for, those agencies that are responsible

         10  for the properties in that infestation area, would

         11  then come together and determine a plan, formulate a

         12  plan for corrective action.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Councilwoman Sears.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         17  Sears actually had a question about the HPD vacant

         18  lots; are those lots, what is the Department's plan

         19  for disposing of those lots? It seems like a lot of

         20  lots we're keeping within the City's portfolio.

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SARAGON: At

         22  this point HPD has completed a review of all its

         23  approximately 2,700 lots, and the vast majority of

         24  those lots have been programmed for some kind of

         25  housing development.

                                                            104

          1  HEALTH AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 So, while, yes, it is a large

          3  quantity, at this point where HPD is disposing of

          4  inventory, we hope that within the next couple of

          5  years most of these lots will have a development on

          6  it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 Thank you, both, very much. We're

          9  going to call up the next panel. Thank you.

         10                 So we would hope that though we're

         11  calling up the next panel doesn't mean that

         12  everybody in these first rows is leaving. I hope

         13  that means that people are staying because the next

         14  panels are representative for the community and

         15  experts. So, I am sure that anybody that has lirched

         16  forward just had a massive itch on their big toe,

         17  they're going to scratch, they're going to lean back

         18  and listen to the community because we would never

         19  leave when we have such important information to

         20  hear from the community. That said, we're going to

         21  call up the next panel.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Randy Dupree,

         23  LuLa Daniels, and Nadine Whitted.

         24                 Is Ed Sheehan from the Professional

         25  Pest Control Association with us? Please join this
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          2  panel.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, at the table

          4  over there the Sergeant will bring over another

          5  Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And just so you

          7  know, the next panel will be Gwen Smalls, Lawrence

          8  McKleen, and William Rodriguez.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The other names

         10  you called are for the next grouping who are after

         11  this.

         12                 There's a fourth chair, sir, if you

         13  want to move up into that. For Mr. Sheehan, I

         14  believe, I'm sorry.

         15                 The other names that the Council

         16  member called are on deck. You're on the panel after

         17  this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You're both

         19  sitting together? We called up one of you but you

         20  both came together?

         21                 MS. DANIELS: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         23                 MS. DANIELS: And she has to leave.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, I've got

         25  that tag team.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Let's put another

          3  chair right there for Mr. Sheehan. And then why

          4  don't -- I'm sorry, I don't remember your name. Why

          5  don't you begin, since you have to leave. Go ahead.

          6                 Ma'am, if you could just pull the mic

          7  closer. The Sergeant will help you. Thank you.

          8                 MS. DANIELS: Good afternoon,

          9  everyone. My name is Lula Daniels, 1631 Grand

         10  Avenue, and I'm also the Chairperson of the Tenant

         11  and Block Neighborhood Council, of Council Member

         12  Foster.

         13                 The reason I am here today is to talk

         14  about the rats in our community. I have a very bad

         15  concern about the rats in our community. It's that

         16  we are overridden with the rats in our community,

         17  and that we need some help. The rats in the South

         18  Bronx are just taking over every place we go.

         19                 You know, my first concern is the

         20  children. Sometimes when children see rats, they

         21  tend to touch them. You know, sometimes the rats are

         22  so big they look like cats, so you don't know, the

         23  children don't know cats from rats, some of the

         24  kids, the small kids that go back and forth to

         25  school. So, you know, we need help with this rat,
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          2  and I feel that the more we -- reach out to our

          3  community, and the more we speak on this here is the

          4  more help that we get.

          5                 The last meeting that I had with, I

          6  had a Council meeting with the Tenant Block

          7  Association, neighborhood Council meeting, is that

          8  we had Mr. Franklin, he is the pet control, and he

          9  come to the town meeting and he tried to, you know,

         10  school us about how we should do with the rats and

         11  how we should keep the rats down and everything.

         12                 He also give us a tour of the places

         13  and things, where rats and things are most here. He

         14  also give us the opportunity to show us how he baits

         15  the rats in the vacant lots and everything. So, what

         16  I'm here tonight, this afternoon, is to just, you

         17  know, we hope and pray that, you know, this rat

         18  abatement will continue to grow.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Please identify

         20  yourself.

         21                 MS. SMALLS: My name is Gwynn Smalls.

         22  I'm with the Bronx HDFC Council, which is an

         23  association of limited equity co-ops, Tenant Interim

         24  Lease buildings, and Mutual Housing Association.

         25                 I'm here, I'm also a part of Helen
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          2  Foster's neighborhood, and Community Council;

          3  however, we think that, and we know that you need to

          4  expound the project that you did in Bushwick

          5  throughout the City. Although there was a special

          6  initiative in the South Bronx, we did not get the

          7  literature that they got in Bushwick in any language

          8  other than English, and it was because the

          9  Councilwoman herself published publications and

         10  distributed them to us. We're thankful that Mr.

         11  Franklin did come to our meetings. We were able to

         12  put on a list the lots that we knew were heavily

         13  populated with rats, and lots that we had been

         14  trying to get pest control to come out and do

         15  something about because we couldn't find the owners,

         16  and because of that special initiative, we were able

         17  to get 24 spots addressed, and it took something

         18  like that just in a small area, there are at least

         19  two rats to every person in New York City going from

         20  one neighborhood to another neighborhood is not

         21  going to diminish the amount of rats, it's just

         22  going to push them to another neighborhood.

         23                 So, if you expound the program

         24  throughout New York City, then you would be able to

         25  decrease the number of rats that exist. You will
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          2  never be able to get rid of them like pigeons,

          3  they've been around longer than us, however, you can

          4  stop them from multiplying.

          5                 The other thing that when you have a

          6  lot of reconstruction and a lot of development like

          7  in the South Bronx, there are a lot of developments.

          8  When you dig that load, you are digging up their

          9  holes and their homes, and they have, they're forced

         10  to leave their homes and go into ours. So that if

         11  you don't do rat abatement, if you don't pass these

         12  legislations that would look at now to decrease

         13  them, then all we have to look forward to is ways of

         14  barring our doors and our windows to keep them from

         15  crawling up our windows and going through our doors,

         16  and as you all know, unless the doors and the

         17  windows and the place where we live is made of

         18  steel, they will get in anyway.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         20  much. So, that's about 16 million rats, based on my

         21  arithmetic.

         22                 MS. SMALLS: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We've heard it

         24  as high as seven for every New Yorker.

         25                 Yes?
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          2                 MS. WHITTED: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Nadine Whitted. I'm the District Manager for

          4  Brooklyn Community Board 4, which is Bushwick. And

          5  there's been lots and lots of reference made to

          6  Bushwick in the Initiative; however, I'm going to

          7  represent my chairperson, her name is Anna Gonzalez,

          8  who has written testimony today, and she asked me to

          9  let you all know that we want to thank you for

         10  giving us the opportunity to speak about the rodent

         11  problem, specifically about the impact of the City's

         12  rat abatement program in Bushwick, and the

         13  legislation proposed to help address this problem.

         14                 Bushwick, like many communities,

         15  experience a significant rise in this rodent

         16  population.

         17                 The primary reason for this increase

         18  in Bushwick included illegal dumping in vacant lots,

         19  and the increased number of construction units that

         20  are being planned in our neighborhood.

         21                 Despite best efforts by community

         22  residents and our local elected representatives, we

         23  were unable to make a significant progress to curb

         24  the problem. We also have problems with illegal

         25  dumping.
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          2                 Besides being an eyesore about

          3  illegal dumping, dumping attracted rodents and in

          4  turn made these sites the territory where these

          5  rodents have been reproduced.

          6                 The district office staff, which is

          7  my office, was swamped with calls and letters from

          8  angry residents about the problem. It appears to be

          9  a no-win situation. We were always a step behind,

         10  and the problem was worse rather than getting

         11  better.

         12                 We were therefore extremely pleased

         13  to be selected as the site for the model rat

         14  abatement program in 2001.

         15                 This program, I am pleased to say,

         16  has had a positive impact on the problem.

         17                 In the 48-block service area,

         18  residents have commented that they have noticed the

         19  difference.

         20                 Complaints to the office are down.

         21  The success of the program, like many other

         22  programs, has been its comprehensive scope. This

         23  program has aimed resources on all aspects of the

         24  rat problem.

         25                 Landlords and building
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          2  superintendents received important information about

          3  steps they could take to discourage rodents and were

          4  provided with new rodent-proof trashcans.

          5                 Let's be honest, this is harder than

          6  it appears. Most of us don't even think that there's

          7  a good way and bad way to take out garbage, but

          8  there are, and this education was an important

          9  aspect to the program's success.

         10                 Also, the size of the service area

         11  was important to the program's success. A smaller

         12  service area would have succeeded only in relocating

         13  the problem a few blocks away, and let the service

         14  area vulnerable to possible reinfestation once

         15  people's vigilance were weened. While undoubtedly

         16  some relocation happened, the large service area

         17  minimized the impact of this.

         18                 This program has had a positive

         19  impact on Bushwick, however, Ms. Gonzalez would like

         20  to suggest some adjustments to the program as the

         21  City seeks to expand it to other neighborhoods.

         22                 First, outreach to property owners

         23  must be improved. Instead of encouraging

         24  participation from property owners, City officials

         25  issued summons and violations first. This made
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          2  property owners more resistant to the program's

          3  goals, and full participation.

          4                 The issuance of summonses should only

          5  be used as a last resort.

          6                 Second, greater coordination between

          7  City agencies is needed. The Department of

          8  Sanitation was excellent at cleaning up vacant lots,

          9  but the lack of quick action by other City agencies

         10  responsible for the fencing of these properties at

         11  times undercut sanitation's efforts. If lots were

         12  not quickly fenced, dumping presumed.

         13                 Inclosing, the Department of Health

         14  and Mental Hygiene deserve praise for developing and

         15  implementing this unique solution to a longstanding

         16  problem.

         17                 This program has been very beneficial

         18  to Bushwick, and the only thing we ask, as it

         19  expands to other neighborhoods, that the efforts in

         20  Bushwick continue.

         21                 Now, those were the remarks from

         22  Chairperson Anna Gonzalez. As the District Manager

         23  of the Community Board, I would like to offer a few

         24  points also, and I'd like to first refer to dumping.

         25                 How can we officially and
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          2  holistically address illegal dumping when Sanitation

          3  police are not dispatched, particularly into those

          4  three key neighborhoods that the Commissioner made

          5  reference to, and of course Bushwick is one of those

          6  communities.

          7                 Construction. In our community we

          8  have a housing renaissance going on. So, there is

          9  construction that has happened, construction that's

         10  going on currently, and construction that's planned.

         11                 I'd like to know, does DOH,

         12  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, have

         13  oversight to assure that the appropriate pest

         14  control measures are being taken while construction

         15  is going on. Because we all know that as the lady

         16  just said, these rodents are displaced during

         17  construction.

         18                 Secondly, I'd like to also say that

         19  landlords were given what we call, or the Department

         20  calls the notices of violations, and sometimes they

         21  had results and other times they didn't have good

         22  results, but what I heard from a lot of owners was

         23  that the time line for reinspection during this

         24  notice was sometimes months. So, even if there was a

         25  problem that had occurred and was relieved, it came
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          2  back again because the reinspection wasn't in a

          3  timely fashion.

          4                 Yes, people in that 48-block radius,

          5  they are receiving trash cans. Unfortunately, some

          6  of them are getting hinged cans, some of them are

          7  not getting hinged cans. We find that in our

          8  community when you put out the garbage and you don't

          9  have a top over it, everybody and anything gets into

         10  the garbage. But the City is taking the leadership

         11  role, we believe that hinged with locking tops

         12  should be those types that are given out to people.

         13                 And this is my last point: I know

         14  that our problem is a great problem in our

         15  community, but I believe that the Department of

         16  Sanitation, who has encouraged us on putting our

         17  garbage out the night before, because often times

         18  it's not controlled as to what time of day they will

         19  come. So, if you put it out the night before, we

         20  know that if they came at 6:00 you won't miss them,

         21  if they came at 7:00 you won't miss them.

         22                 But my problem has been, if you put

         23  the garbage out the night before, why do we have to

         24  wait 12 hours for collection? That's just also

         25  feeding into the problem.
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          2                 So, yes, we do believe that this is a

          3  very good rodent abatement problem -- I'm sorry,

          4  program, but in order for it to work and be

          5  duplicated, please consider some of the things that

          6  we say in Bushwick.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

          8                 Mr. Dupree.

          9                 Let me just say thank you once again

         10  publicly for the extraordinary support that you

         11  provided the Select Committee on Pest Control as we

         12  began to investigate this problem and attempt to

         13  come up with some solutions. Your role was

         14  invaluable and obviously it resulted in a report

         15  that was highly regarded, at least in terms of the

         16  Mayor.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And in Mayor

         18  Bloomberg's blueprint for public health when he was

         19  a candidate they actually cited the Perkins' report

         20  as something that should be adopted.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         22                 MR. DUPREE: Good afternoon. I'm

         23  somewhat at a disadvantage, I guess, because I have

         24  been away from the City for some time, in terms of

         25  my involvement. However, just let me say that since
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          2  my retirement, as Assistant Commissioner in 1997, I

          3  was involved in the planning of the Committee that

          4  you chaired. In the last two years or two and a half

          5  years, I've been general manager of an exterminating

          6  company in New York City, so therefore I have kept

          7  my hand into the whole problem of rodent control

          8  throughout the City.

          9                 Just let me say, I certainly agree,

         10  that 90-A is needed. I think that even as a

         11  deterrent we need to decrease the fine so that

         12  people will be able to pay.

         13                 I also, believe that 534, is

         14  absolutely necessary, and I'll tell you why, for two

         15  reasons: We are now talking about three areas of New

         16  York City under the Integrated Pest Management

         17  Approach, and I think it's a wonderful approach. But

         18  I also think that that approach was started in the

         19  eighties and nineties, called the Coordinated Block

         20  Approach Program, where they had the same kind of

         21  program in six areas of the City, Harlem, South

         22  Bronx, the Lower East Side, Staten Island, Bushwick,

         23  Bed Stuy and Brownsville.

         24                 The program that included

         25  inspections, exterminations, clean-up, education.
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          2  The same kind of program that we're doing now in

          3  Bushwick and other areas; therefore, if there was an

          4  agency, if there was some kind of entity that would

          5  be able to carry over the '80s and '90s until now,

          6  certainly we would not have wasted the time between

          7  then and now in starting this program up. There

          8  seems to be a disjointed between -- and it's

          9  certainly understandable because it is based on

         10  funding, it is based on politics, it's based on news

         11  reports, and so therefore, there is up and down in

         12  terms of whether or not programs like this are given

         13  the kind of attention that it should be.

         14                 I think that if we had an entity that

         15  would be over all of those programs, then there

         16  would be some consistency in terms of delivery of

         17  services.

         18                 The other reason I believe that is

         19  necessary, and I'll just read you this for a moment,

         20  it is important that the Department of Health take

         21  the lead on this issue, because it is the only City

         22  agency mandated by the State to enforce rodent

         23  control regulations. It is also the agency

         24  responsible for public health and related

         25  environmental concerns.

                                                            119

          1  HEALTH AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 Due to jurisdictional considerations,

          3  agencies are not permitted to service properties for

          4  which other agencies have responsibilities.

          5                 The Bureau of Pest Control sometimes

          6  cannot service the Housing Authority or the Parks

          7  Department, rodent control efforts often are

          8  hampered because of extermination is a low priority

          9  in some agencies, and therefore no concerted effort

         10  is made to deal with the problem.

         11                 This is further exacerbated in most

         12  agencies by a lack of funds dedicated to pest

         13  control. This disjointed nature of the City's

         14  approach to the rodent control contributes to

         15  deterioriated quality of life and creates a public

         16  health threat to the citizens of New York City, and

         17  at the present time no uniformed Citywide standards

         18  regarding types of a chemical, placement, frequency,

         19  exists for treating rodent infestation.

         20                 Rodent control should be approached

         21  in a comprehensive manner so that the infested area

         22  is treated in its entirety rather than piecemeal.

         23                 This was written, let me just say to

         24  my boss, in July 6th, 1995, and certainly the same

         25  thing exists today, and I think that it is important
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          2  to note that there are a number, if there are 19

          3  City agencies that are involved in this task force,

          4  it is also noted that there are 19 City agencies

          5  that pest control is not their primary concern, and

          6  so therefore, it is not funded to the level in most

          7  agencies that it should be. There need to be some

          8  agency involved that will look at all the agencies

          9  that are funded, all the agencies that have some

         10  concern with pest control, and to decide whether or

         11  not their best efforts are going for making their

         12  particular bureau and their concern for the best for

         13  the City.

         14                 So, I think there need to be some

         15  kind of oversight just for to make sure that this

         16  program continues over the longrun rather than over

         17  two to three years due to political make-overs.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         20  much. We appreciate that. And I'd like a copy of

         21  that memo for the Committee. I'm sure all the

         22  members would appreciate it.

         23                 Yes, sir.

         24                 MR. SHEEHAN: Good afternoon, members

         25  of the City Council. I'm Ed Sheehan. I'm Executive
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          2  Director of the Professional Pest Control

          3  Association of New York City.

          4                 We have studied your Resolution

          5  Number 1024, and these are our findings. We know

          6  that landlords in a 48-block area were provided with

          7  rodent-proof garbage receptacles. We wonder, does

          8  this rodent-proof receptacle program include

          9  commercial enterprises, such as restaurants, grocery

         10  stores, factories, et cetera, in that same 48-block

         11  area. It's no good. In order to be effective in the

         12  long-term, rodent control must encompass the entire

         13  community.

         14                 Also noted were plans to distribute

         15  8,000 rodent-proof garbage containers. While this is

         16  a beginning, it does not go far enough. All garbage

         17  containers in the City of New York should be rodent

         18  proof. Legislation should require that all garbage

         19  containers that are used or sold in New York City be

         20  rodent-proof.

         21                 We go on to further note that the

         22  rodent task force will focus on, among other things,

         23  best practices for rodent abatement and residents,

         24  community and landlord education and prevention.

         25  Again, the commercial enterprise, such as
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          2  restaurants, grocery stores, factories, et cetera,

          3  must be involved in the task force mandate.

          4                 I'm focusing on the restaurants

          5  because there's no law presently that says if you

          6  own a restaurant or you're a food purveyor that you

          7  have to have pest control services, and when the

          8  Board of Health comes in with their new form or the

          9  point system, it's only when there's a problem that

         10  it's brought to note. And in order for any pest

         11  control program to be effective, you have to be

         12  proactive. Even if there's not a problem, you can do

         13  things to ensure that a problem doesn't exist. Maybe

         14  there's just a small problem, you can end it before

         15  it becomes a big problem. That's why you need

         16  regular service.

         17                 To go on further, I believe this

         18  program described in 1024, and I'm borne out by my

         19  colleagues in the pest control industry, is known to

         20  the pest control industry as integrated management.

         21                 Integrated pest management is a

         22  systematic approach that considers all reasonable

         23  methods to avoid pest problems. It combines the

         24  control or suppression procedures that best aide the

         25  particular situation.
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          2                 The IPM holistic and proactive

          3  approach is dedicated for removing causes, rather

          4  than treating symptoms. Lasting success can be

          5  accomplished, only when the causes leading to

          6  infestation are corrected.

          7                 Some examples: Short grass, neatly

          8  trimmed shrubbs, paved accessway and proper drainage

          9  reduce or eliminate shelter areas for pests.

         10                 Identifying ways pests enter a

         11  structure in making modifications to prevent access,

         12  monitoring at regular intervals, helps maintain data

         13  on rodent evidence that will help to evaluate

         14  performance of the IPM Program.

         15                 The community can assistant in the

         16  rodent program in the following ways: Sanitation is

         17  the most important pest management technique in

         18  structures.

         19                 Proper sanitation removes the food,

         20  water and harborage required by rodents placing a

         21  tremendous amount of stress on that same rodent

         22  population.

         23                 Food residues left on dishes,

         24  silverware, appliances, counters or tables will

         25  increase the rodent population.
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          2                 Cleaning these items and areas

          3  immediately after use will eliminate the food source

          4  and will further stress the rodent population.

          5                 Elimination of harborage areas such

          6  as old tires, boxes, et cetera, and the ceiling of

          7  rodent entryways will again place stress on the

          8  rodent population.

          9                 If enough stress is placed on the

         10  rodent population, as much as 50 percent of that

         11  rodent population will be eliminated without the

         12  need for rodenticide.

         13                 While expanding the rate abatement

         14  program to all neighborhoods in the City of New

         15  York, as an excellent idea we should not lose site

         16  of the following: It should be mandatory that all

         17  garbage containers be rodent proof. It should be

         18  mandatory that all food purveyors, restaurants,

         19  grocery stores, food warehouses, et cetera, employ

         20  the services of a New York State registered pest

         21  control company.

         22                 In closing, I salute your efforts.

         23  Much has been done, much more is needed.

         24                 I'd also like to comment. I don't

         25  have a written statement on it, but in listening
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          2  while talking about 534, I was watching you from my

          3  seat over there, and I think what you were trying to

          4  do by getting the numbers, how much are you

          5  spending, this, that and the other thing, how much

          6  time - in the pest control industry we call it

          7  proper routing. Why are we sending two crews when

          8  one crew is working in a lot and another crew from

          9  another agency is working in a house that's right

         10  next door to it. If we can combine them all, we

         11  could certainly use the existing personnel much more

         12  wisely, much more cost effectively. And those are my

         13  comments. I thank you for letting me talk to you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         15  much. So, with regard to the bills, your comments

         16  seem to suggest support or --

         17                 MR. SHEEHAN: I'm in support of both

         18  bills, but I tell you that you need to get these --

         19  I walk down here, I go to dinners all over the City,

         20  and I come out and I see plastic garbage containers

         21  and that's dinner for 500 because the rats just cut

         22  right through them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You're talking

         24  about the black plastic bags?

         25                 MR. SHEEHAN: There's white, there's
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          2  green, there's all different kinds.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The plastic

          4  bags.

          5                 MR. SHEEHAN: The plastic bags.

          6                 The rats' teeth are extremely hard.

          7  They go through those bags very quickly. Every night

          8  we're setting the plate for them. We're setting the

          9  plate for them. Our commercial buildings, I won't

         10  mention the names of restaurants, right here in this

         11  area, you're just putting out garbage which is their

         12  food every night, why would they go away?

         13                 We cannot, the pest control industry,

         14  we have a very, very difficult time competing with

         15  that garbage, with our poison.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         17  much. I appreciate it.

         18                 I just want to ask a question of the

         19  representative from Bushwick.

         20                 You made note of the success of the

         21  program as it has been in your community for the

         22  past six months, I'm wondering, do you have any

         23  thought with regard to the commercial enterprises in

         24  the neighborhood, and how did they fare during this

         25  task force effort? Was it strictly residential, from

                                                            127

          1  HEALTH AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  your experience, or did you notice any commercial

          3  impact?

          4                 MS. WHITTED: Unfortunately, those

          5  that I had contact with concerning the program was

          6  strictly residential. So, those who owned and

          7  operated commercial establishments, they hadn't

          8  complained. And unfortunately, in Bushwick, it's

          9  been my experience that when you have a commercial

         10  establishment that receives summonses or any type of

         11  violation, to me it's the cost of doing business in

         12  Bushwick, that's built in. So, pay the summons and

         13  keep going, and I think that's unfortunate.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: One other

         15  question.

         16                 So, the residents of Bushwick know

         17  who to call when they have a rodent-related problem?

         18                 Do they have a number or do they know

         19  what agency?

         20                 MS. WHITTED: Prior to 3-1-1, they

         21  would call Community Board 4, and now they have

         22  folks call.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: They can call

         24  3-1-1?

         25                 MS. WHITTED: Yes, they can call 3-1-1
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          2  or they can call the Community Board Office.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you, all,

          5  very much for your time and your testimony. Thank

          6  you very much.

          7                 MS. SMALLS: HPD talked about the

          8  number of vacant lots, well the Green Thumb Program

          9  has run out of lots, maybe HPD should share some of

         10  their vacant lots with the community, and that would

         11  help keep down the pest control in those lots.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That sounds like a

         13  topic for another committee. Thank you.

         14                 We're going to have one more panel,

         15  so we thank everybody for scratching their toe and

         16  staying, so if we can just get further indulgence

         17  we'll call up our last groups of witnesses.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Darryl Ramsey,

         19  William Chapel, William Rodriguez, Lawrence McClean,

         20  and Lorenzo Dufau.

         21                 This should be the final panel. I

         22  hope that everyone that wanted to testify has been

         23  identified.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Would you

         25  please raise your right hand? Do you solemnly swear
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          2  or affirm the testimony you're about to give is the

          3  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          4                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

          6  Could you, before reading your testimony, state your

          7  name and any organization you're affiliated with?

          8  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And if we could

         10  start with the representatives in District Council

         11  37, please, because I know they have a time crunch.

         12  Please identify yourself.

         13                 MR. RAMSEY: Okay, good afternoon. My

         14  name is Darryl Ramsey. I'm the President of Local

         15  768 of District Council 37, and I have with me one

         16  of my lead-off members, Mr. William Chapel,

         17  representing the CPCAs, which you've all heard much

         18  about.

         19                 The Health Services Union, I'm

         20  president of that. Part of our District 37 family,

         21  we represent over 4,000 public health professionals

         22  in this City. One of the most important groups that

         23  we represent in DOH is the pest control staff. From

         24  the City pest control aides who clean up the garbage

         25  in these vacant lots, which we talked about a lot
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          2  today, to the licensed exterminators who handle the

          3  chemicals and the base.

          4                 It is critical that this Committee

          5  understand how the entire series of pest control

          6  staff works together. Without the supervisors going

          7  out into the field to check on garbage and food

          8  waste in the street, the pest control aides cannot

          9  go out to clean up the mess. Without our pest

         10  control aides, cleaning up the garbage that the rats

         11  and the mice live on, the exterminators cannot put

         12  down poison.

         13                 Earlier this year, Department of

         14  Health was ordered to cut its budget, just like

         15  other City agencies. For reasons that are still a

         16  mystery to us, the Department of Health has decided

         17  to lay off 37 pest control aides and five

         18  supervisors of pest control. These workers bring in

         19  a significant amount of revenue. The City charges

         20  landlords between 40 and 45 per hour per person to

         21  clean up these crews for hauling. I think you all

         22  heard quite a bit about their uncollected monies,

         23  the City Pest Control aides earn about $11 an hour,

         24  therefore, the City brings in about $30 in revenue

         25  an hour during the clean-up for every person, pest
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          2  control aides that it sends out.

          3                 Furthermore, they laid off these

          4  employees in May, right before the summer, and right

          5  around the time when the City decided to cut back on

          6  its recycling collection.

          7                 During the summer, the rat complaints

          8  went sky high. Everybody knows that rats love a good

          9  trash dump. Even Mayor Bloomberg went on television

         10  and told New Yorkers to call in if they see people

         11  dumping garbage in vacant lots. Who is going to

         12  clean up these dirty lots? How is our Mayor

         13  Bloomberg going to cut down on the rat problem when

         14  the main agency, which is the Department of Health,

         15  handling pest control just cut loose 41 experienced

         16  people that cleans up.

         17                 We have been told that the Department

         18  of Health have received more than $1.3 million in

         19  restorations this year just to improve pest control,

         20  because we have an escalating rodent problem and the

         21  workers who clean the lots so they don't have any

         22  food have just been laid off.

         23                 Here's the group of experienced

         24  people that can help stop the rat crisis right now

         25  when we need them the most.
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          2                 The agency should restore the

          3  functions and the jobs that we were already

          4  performing, which is the pest control aides.

          5                 Second, it is a waste of money. Right

          6  now the agency is only hiring more exterminators.

          7  The City pays exterminators about $2 an hour more

          8  than it pays our pest control aides, but the City

          9  charged landlords only $34, as opposed to the $40

         10  for pest control aides on site, when there are maybe

         11  up to ten pest control aides cleaning the site.

         12                 Multiply that times 40 that's like

         13  $400, as opposed to just the $34 they're getting

         14  charged for an exterminator.

         15                 If the Department of Health hires

         16  exterminators to do the job that laid off workers

         17  did, it would be spending $3,654 more per employee

         18  in wages, not to mention that the City would be

         19  paying $8,875 per week in unemployment insurance to

         20  the members who got laid off.

         21                 If the agency needs more

         22  exterminators, it should train the experienced staff

         23  it already has and promote from within.

         24                 Finally, there's a waste of an

         25  opportunity. In the nineties the agency developed a
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          2  current team structure to save money and improve

          3  productivity.

          4                 DOH thought it would be more

          5  economical and efficient to hire a large team of

          6  City pest control aides, who under the coordination

          7  of a crew chief would clean up dumping grounds so

          8  the exterminators could follow with baits and

          9  poison. They were right, it has been a great

         10  success.

         11                 So, the City pest control aides are

         12  positioned in solid entry level jobs that does not

         13  have a lot of requirements. It's a great career

         14  ladder job for people who want to better themselves

         15  but have minimal skills and are having a tough time

         16  finding work, those that were laid off.

         17                 Many members who are exterminators

         18  today once started out as City pest control aides.

         19  They went for their license and got themselves out

         20  of hard times. I cannot emphasize enough how

         21  critical it is to have an integrated vertical team

         22  of pest control workers, we inspect sites, we clean

         23  up garbage, report the findings, and issue

         24  violations to negligent landlords.

         25                 We educate people about the dangers
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          2  of rodent infestation and provide information on

          3  abatement.

          4                 The best way to get rid of rats is to

          5  make sure they don't have food and nests in the

          6  first place.

          7                 Our members get our hands dirty every

          8  day digging through trash and going into abandoned

          9  buildings to eliminate rats from your neighborhoods.

         10  We are the experts in pest control and our knowledge

         11  and hard work brings in revenues for the City.

         12                 The City Council's plan for a pest

         13  control board and expanding the Bushwick program

         14  must include representatives of the workers that

         15  actually perform this work.

         16                 But first we must make sure that the

         17  City puts the laid off workers back to work, doing

         18  the job they already know how to do.

         19                 Thank you. I'd like to have Mr.

         20  Chapel, who is running late, to speak. Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 MR. CHAPEL: Good afternoon,

         23  everybody. My name is Mr. William Chapel. I'm a

         24  former CPCA, and I was laid off on May 16th, 2003. I

         25  urge that the panel try to see if we can get our
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          2  jobs back, because it's very crucial in order for us

          3  to combat this battle that we have with this big

          4  rodent problem.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 Why don't you start.

          8                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Okay. My name is

          9  William Rodriguez. I'm the president and co-founder

         10  of Alto Exterminating. I've been in business for 28

         11  years now, and I have a very successful company.

         12                 It's successful because prior to my

         13  starting my business I worked for the Health

         14  Department, Bureau of Pest Control under Randy

         15  Dupree, who just spoke. And one of the things that I

         16  became aware of is that you're not going to have

         17  effective extermination if you don't have the proper

         18  sanitation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You know there's a

         20  law.

         21                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: So, when I started my

         22  business back 28 years ago, I said my business is

         23  going to be specializing in sanitation and pest

         24  control. That's very important. You see, everybody

         25  is speaking about sanitation pick-up, everybody is
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          2  talking about the landlords, the residents too.

          3  Education is extremely important.

          4                 When I talk to my customers, I tell

          5  them, I can put down poison to kill your rats, but

          6  if you don't eliminate what attracted them here, the

          7  family comes to the funeral and they like it so they

          8  stay.

          9                 Basically I tell people, when you go

         10  to the park you walk through a path where everybody

         11  walks because you know that's a safe place to walk.

         12  The rats and mice have a path too. Their body odor

         13  is a path to water, they're body odor is a path to

         14  food. So, you eliminate that attractant, they stop

         15  using that path, and they don't come back again.

         16                 But if you put down poison, don't

         17  educate the people, and the garbage in the apartment

         18  stays uncovered, when they take the garbage

         19  downstairs to the garbage can, which everybody is

         20  recommending that we use, and there is no signs

         21  there to encourage the people to keep the garbage

         22  covered, that can ain't going to do a darn thing,

         23  because the people don't put the top back on the

         24  can.

         25                 It's not only the landlord, it's not
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          2  only the sanitation - we all have to work as a team.

          3                 When I go out and I apply my

          4  services, educating the people is extremely

          5  important, and that should be a concern.

          6                 Rats are in the sewers predominantly

          7  and along the waterfronts. Why? Why there? They need

          8  water to survive.

          9                 Obviously New Yorkers are using their

         10  toilets to flush garbage, food scraps. That should

         11  discontinue. There should be education to everyone

         12  in New York City to stop using the toilets as a

         13  means of flushing food scraps. That should only be

         14  used to flush one thing and I don't want to discuss

         15  that here now.

         16                 By the way, they talk about Bushwick

         17  and Lower Manhattan and all the places they're at.

         18  Wherever people congregate there's rats. Right now

         19  one of the worst rat-infested areas in New York City

         20  is highly populated, the West Bronx. Everybody keeps

         21  saying the South Bronx; the West Bronx, along Grand

         22  Concourse, Walton Avenue, those humungous buildings

         23  are loaded with rats, and some of those buildings

         24  have the biggest amount of mismanagement of their

         25  refuse. You see it every night on the streets when
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          2  you pass by, including Grand Concourse, which I know

          3  one time was a boulevard of the Bronx. And I'm glad

          4  to hear the Borough President is planning to do

          5  something about working with those commercial areas

          6  there.

          7                 By the way, they talk about

          8  restaurants and food establishments, let me tell you

          9  where I found a common rodent problem..  Multiple

         10  dwelling commercials. When you have a building where

         11  people live and there's a business there, those

         12  buildings, those are where the inspectors should go

         13  first, to all those multiple dwelling commercials

         14  with the restaurants and the bodegas and all of

         15  that, if there are residents there and there's an

         16  establishment selling food, right there you have a

         17  problem that spreads throughout the community.

         18                 Last but not least, if the projects

         19  want to see the rat situation, because believe me,

         20  in the projects you're having a problem with rats

         21  and mice that you've never had before, and it's

         22  because of the use of plastic garbage bags. Now, if

         23  the project does not realize that you've got to get

         24  away from plastic garbage bags, you have to use a

         25  proper receptacle, because even some of those
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          2  garbage compactors, they have holes in the bottom

          3  and rats go in there. You have to build equipment so

          4  that it will truly be rodent proof.

          5                 If have a whole list of satisfied

          6  customers, and they all understand that Sanitation

          7  is extremely important. It's not just to blame the

          8  sanitation, it's not just to blame the landlords.

          9  Everybody must wake up. We've got to work as a team.

         10  If we don't, all this talk is foolish.

         11                 By the way, everybody talks about,

         12  oh, it costs so much money to do this, so much to do

         13  that. Let me tell you something: When you fight

         14  pests today, you're fighting pests for tomorrow. And

         15  if you get into fighting pestilence, there's going

         16  to be a lot more deaths and a lot more money to

         17  spend. God forbid of the terrorists begin to think,

         18  wow, why not put Bubonic Plague into a few rats and

         19  throw them into New York City. If we eliminate the

         20  pest-conducive conditions, that will never work. But

         21  if we don't wake up and eliminate the

         22  pest-conductive conditions, the World Trade Center

         23  showed me that they use anything necessary, and we

         24  must wake up and solve that problem.

         25                 I know the solution is working within
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          2  my company and I will be more than glad to work with

          3  the City to help out in any way I can.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 I especially liked that saying "fight

          8  pests today or pestilence tomorrow."

          9                 Next, Brother McClean, my district

         10  manager from Community Board 9, Manhattan.

         11                 MR. McCLEAN: Good afternoon. I have a

         12  prepared statement, and I'd like to amend it in the

         13  next to the last paragraph, because of some of the

         14  things I've heard here today.

         15                 First off, to the Chairwoman, I want

         16  to first thank you for taking the time to receive

         17  comments from Community Board 9, Manhattan. Our

         18  district is located on the West Side from 110th

         19  North to 155th, and from the West bounded by

         20  Riverside Park, east of St. Nicholas Avenue.

         21                 As with most of the City's community

         22  boards, we have a large rat population, and as a

         23  Manhattan Board, they can be plainly visible. This

         24  not only creates a disruption on our residents'

         25  quality of life, but more importantly threatens the
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          2  spread of disease, especially around local schools.

          3                 As the manager of the district

          4  office, I have not only dealt with individual

          5  complaints, but in June 2002 coordinated a multiple

          6  agency rat abatement initiative, which covered a 51

          7  square block area that we found to be moderately

          8  successful.

          9                 I hope that in elaborating the steps

         10  we took, as well as what we learned in the process,

         11  it will be some assistance to your committee, as

         12  listed below.

         13                 One, we decided it made no sense to

         14  have the Department of Health Pest Control Unit bait

         15  if all the other agencies were not doing so, as the

         16  rats could bypass the poison.

         17                 We had discussions and meetings with

         18  pest control, Sanitation District 9, DEP which

         19  covered the treatment plant, parks, as well as

         20  Riverbank State Park, all of whom agree that HPD's

         21  property management also had to be involved.

         22                 HPD's supers are responsible for

         23  multiple occupied buildings, and put out the

         24  buildings garbage without following the Sanitation

         25  pick-up schedule and the City-owned buildings are
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          2  not penalized.

          3                 I just want to comment that we were

          4  kind of surprised when we had property management

          5  come to this meeting, we thought that they were

          6  unaware that the supers just put out the trash, but

          7  what we found is with multiple buildings if a super

          8  had a building that he was at on Thursday and the

          9  pick-up was out on Saturday, he just put the garbage

         10  out Friday, because he wasn't going to be back, and

         11  this became a major problem. And what we felt was we

         12  were going to have to control the garbage being put

         13  out if we were going to have a coordinated event.

         14                 Each of these agencies use a

         15  different strength poison, from DEP's industrial

         16  level, they stated in some cases at the treatment

         17  plant they tested their employees, to the Park's

         18  milder types because of the fear that children or

         19  pets might get into them.

         20                 So, when they're baiting, each of

         21  these agencies, their poison is not the same

         22  strength. And they did have legitimate reasons for

         23  that.

         24                 For an agreed-upon period, all these

         25  agencies baited the parks, the Broadway malls and
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          2  high visibility areas and sewers while HPD baited

          3  and held the garbage off the streets.

          4                 With no alternatives the rats ate

          5  more of the poison.

          6                 We found from pest control, we did

          7  not know that if rats eat poison and then eat food,

          8  the poison is dissipated. So, parents were advised

          9  by local schools to watch out for children around

         10  bait areas in June until September 2002. Rat

         11  complaints dropped 60 percent in our office.

         12                 In addition, one of the instances

         13  that will create a major rat problem is

         14  construction. For once digging begins they are

         15  disrupted in seeking new locations causing

         16  neighboring buildings of lots to be impacted.

         17                 While my experience in 11 years at

         18  Board 9, as well as a resident of Southern Queens,

         19  made me aware that all agency contracts included the

         20  Department of Design and Construction, State and

         21  Port Authority called for baiting, indeed DDC seeks

         22  a bond if the contractor cannot complete the job.

         23  Private builders do not have to bait. This was

         24  confirmed by the New York City Department of

         25  Buildings at our budget confrontations in September.
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          2                 This would mean that the major

          3  portion of those doing construction in the City have

          4  no responsibility for the increase in vermin in

          5  local neighborhoods after paying for their permits.

          6                 They in effect will enjoy the

          7  benefits of their developing real estate in the

          8  City, while taxpayers bear the burden of eliminating

          9  any health risk created.

         10                 In my personal opinion, the Council

         11  might look at this particular matter.

         12                 At this point I want to also add up

         13  that we did a two-year survey on response to

         14  complaints from all agencies.

         15                 And what we found out is that the

         16  response time for the Department of Health was

         17  impacted. If we sent a complaint to the Department

         18  of Health and another agency had its own Pest

         19  Control Unit, the complaint was forwarded to them.

         20  So this was a longer response time.

         21                 Now with the 3-1-1 system, it may be

         22  important that if someone reports a pest problem,

         23  that it's clarified whether or not it's a City-owned

         24  building, otherwise they may refer to the Department

         25  of Health and it gets referred to the other agency
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          2  and takes longer to address.

          3                 And finally, since people mentioned

          4  Sanitation, we found one of the problems around

          5  commercial garbage cans is overflow. And as you

          6  know, the Daily News did a story on it, the Mayor

          7  commented on it, we sent a letter to Speaker Miller,

          8  because one of the things we realized and he alluded

          9  to it, is when we do have the commercial pick-ups,

         10  we have 125th Street and Broadway and Amsterdam

         11  Avenue, what happens is that within the few hours,

         12  these garbage cans are filled with personal litter.

         13  People come out of their buildings and throw their

         14  private household trash in these litter cans.

         15                 Then what happens is that people

         16  follow and throw in litter and foodstuff, it spills

         17  over and makes it easier for the rats.

         18                 What we did in writing the letter to

         19  Speaker Miller was indicate that maybe some of that

         20  overtime should be utilized to pay for more time for

         21  the enforcement agent, and we received a response

         22  day before yesterday from Sanitation, it indicates

         23  that they looked into the matter, they did follow

         24  up, and in early, the first two weeks of October,

         25  issued ten summonses to people dumping household
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          2  trash in those commercial bins.

          3                 So, again, education is the process,

          4  but what we felt was that it was necessary to let

          5  people know that they would also be penalized if

          6  they were caught dumping household trash in

          7  commercial bins as well. And apparently, it seems to

          8  work.

          9                 And after that, I end by saying I

         10  hope these comments have assisted you in developing

         11  a cohesive policy for reducing, if not eradicating,

         12  the pest problems that this City must contend with,

         13  and our Health Committee is meeting the first week

         14  in November, and we hopefully will move forward to

         15  the Board for support for resolutions for both

         16  intros.

         17                 MR. DUFAU: Good afternoon, everyone.

         18  My name is Lorenzo Dufau. I live in the Bronx. My

         19  Councilperson is Foster, Councilman Foster.

         20                 I am just a citizen of this City.

         21  I've been here since about 1942, '43, I moved, this

         22  is the first time I've had reason to come sit before

         23  the Committee. But World War II we got rid of what

         24  we call rats then, and here in '03, we're battling a

         25  common rat, and there's so many agencies involved
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          2  that do jobs, yet it boils down, it seems like

          3  nobody is doing their job. Put out poison, kill the

          4  dog-goned rats. Get rid of them. There's too many

          5  different reasons why you should kill a rat or what

          6  technique, a dead rat is a dead rat, get rid of

          7  them.

          8                 I hope before I die, I plan on living

          9  a long time, but this war on rats, our Commission,

         10  our Council, you have the power I'm sure to overrule

         11  all these different agencies who just give people

         12  gobbly-gook they call it, this is another name for a

         13  lot of junk. Take charge of the job of getting rid

         14  of these rats.

         15                 All these different agencies are not

         16  performing, you don't need them. Kill the rats.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Another

         20  tee-shirt, Commissioner.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: There you go.

         22  Maybe what, you know, maybe that marketing person we

         23  have for the City of New York now could have a whole

         24  line of rat-related tee-shirts.

         25                 I just want to say, one, I want to
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          2  thank so many members of the Administration for

          3  staying and listening to both panels. I know I

          4  really appreciate how many folks have stayed. I

          5  think this panel and the panel before were very

          6  useful and for me raised some very interesting

          7  questions that we need to follow up on, both as it

          8  relates to the line of questioning which we had

          9  earlier about the laid off workers and the

         10  information we're going to get about that. Also the

         11  questions that you raised about why it's different

         12  pesticides used by different agencies, and that's an

         13  excellent question we need to follow up on. And then

         14  the earlier panel where, you know, Mr. Dupree kind

         15  of said, showed us clearly everything old is new

         16  again. Both of the panels, I think for me, have

         17  given us an even clearer agenda of what we need to

         18  follow up on and were very helpful to both of the

         19  Committee's work as we move forward. So, thank you

         20  very much for your time. I know you've all been here

         21  for a big chunk of the afternoon. I just want to

         22  thank you.

         23                 MR. RAMSEY: I just want to make one

         24  more comment. I think it may be the last time I came

         25  to the hearing, and that is New York City has a
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          2  habit of putting garbage out the night before for

          3  pick-up during the morning. That is playing into a

          4  rat's hand because they're nocturnal. My suggestion

          5  is put the garbage out at dawn, and have the

          6  Sanitation Department pick it up before it gets

          7  dark. Because if you constantly put out garbage at

          8  night, you're constantly attracting rats, because

          9  that garbage, because if it's in a garbage can,

         10  somebody uncovers it, and if it's plastic bags,

         11  forget it, you're really feeding them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: There's lots of

         13  heads in the room nodding, so I take it to assume

         14  that on some level it's being looked at by the

         15  Administration.

         16                 MR. RAMSEY: Thank you. Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, let me, to

         19  echo my colleague's remarks, I really appreciate

         20  these last two panels. I am appreciated them all. I

         21  think this was a very good hearing, and this was

         22  maybe one of the first times that so many other

         23  agencies not only arrived but actually stayed to the

         24  end, and that's clearly very much appreciated.

         25                 I think that, however, it's more
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          2  encouraging than ever before, the path that we're

          3  on, in terms of the various pieces of legislation

          4  that have been brought before us. I believe that the

          5  Department of Health has hopefully heard your

          6  testimony and has received it in a very positive and

          7  constructive way.

          8                 I know sometimes new ideas tend to be

          9  embraced in the negative, as if it's a criticism per

         10  se, without necessarily appreciating what the value

         11  may be. And, so, I think, however, that if nothing

         12  else, we've learned that we have to have a much more

         13  comprehensive, much more coordinated and a much more

         14  centralized approach so that we can rationalize the

         15  way in which we are dealing with this problem, and

         16  right now it's a little bit too haphazard, and it's

         17  a little bit too whimsical. It's a little bit too

         18  much a matter of when the media attention gets it

         19  and when the media attention doesn't. I think that

         20  the various agencies are using different techniques

         21  to do the same thing, and maybe there needs to be

         22  some better appreciation of that, and hopefully this

         23  hearing will help to bring that out.

         24                 So, I want to thank Councilwoman

         25  Christine Quinn for making this hearing happen. I
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          2  obviously want to thank staff for all that they've

          3  done to prepare us for this hearing, and it's just a

          4  beginning of what I'm sure will turn out to be a

          5  very fruitful series of hearings.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to add

          8  for the record and for the folks in the

          9  Administration who are here, we ended up not voting

         10  in the Health Committee on Intro. 98 today, that's

         11  just in the Health Committee, not in Government

         12  Operations. We will be voting on that at our next

         13  hearing. We won't be taking any more testimony on

         14  it, but we will be having a vote on that at our next

         15  hearing, just so folks know that, and we appreciate

         16  the Administration's support of that piece of

         17  legislation.

         18                 This was the first hearing on Intro.

         19  534, so of course we didn't vote, because it would

         20  be inappropriate to vote at the first hearing, but I

         21  just want to I think make clear for myself and

         22  Chairperson Perkins that we're very interested in

         23  moving that piece of legislation forward. Obviously

         24  the Administration raised concerns about that and we

         25  would like to really begin a constructive
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          2  legislative dialogue about those concerns with the

          3  effort of moving toward a second hearing and at the

          4  appropriate point in the not so far distant future,

          5  moving forward with a version of that piece of

          6  legislation which meets the goal of increased

          7  coordination and more creative thinking as it

          8  relates to rat abatement.

          9                 So, with that said, I think this

         10  joint hearing is adjourned.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 4:04 p.m.)
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